Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Friday 19 March 2021 at 10.00 am
Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES

Stephen Bace

2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 20)

Stephen Bace

To approve the minutes from the meeting on 27 November 2020 and the
budget scrutiny day on 7 January 2021.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Shaun
Parsons

4

WORK PLAN

Cllr Shaun
Parsons

Forthcoming Executive Decision List
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.
aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthc
omingdecisions&V=1
Council Strategy
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/gcc_2325-councilstrategy-2019_dev20.pdf
Scrutiny Feedback
Feedback on Scrutiny was collated for the Council meeting on 17 March
2021 and can be found at the link below:
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s69559/BScrutiny%20R
eview%20responses%20for%20Council%20170321.pdf
5

RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 21 - 28)

Date Published:11 March 2021

Darren Skinner

6

STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE REPORT - 3RD QUARTER 2020/21
(Pages 29 - 74)

Rob Ayliffe

It would be helpful if members would email in detailed questions arising
from the performance reports in advance of the meeting. This will enable
officers to have prepared responses and also better support the
committee’s debate on these matters.
7

FINANCE UPDATE (Pages 75 - 86)

Paul Blacker

8

PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORPORATE RESOURCES (Pages 87 88)

Steve Mawson

INFORMATION ITEMS
Working Group and Scrutiny Update
Membership – Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Kate Haigh,
Cllr Joe Harris (Vice-Chair), Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Dr Andrew Miller, Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair),
Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Eva Ward and Cllr Lesley Williams MBE
Added Members Co-Opted Member (a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring
Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior
to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Officer
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic Services (tel
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services
Officer on duty at the meeting.
EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

Agenda Item 2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Friday
27 November 2020 as a virtual webex meeting.
PRESENT:
Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Lesley Williams

Cllr Nigel Robbins
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair)
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Ray Theodoulou

Substitutes:
In attendance:

Apologies:
1.

Rob Ayliffe, Director of Policy Performance & Governance and
Monitoring Officer
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services
Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser
Cllr Eva Ward
Cllr Joe Harris

APOLOGIES
See above.

2.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting on 30 September 2020 were agreed as a correct
record.

3.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
No additional declarations were made.

4.

WORK PLAN
Members noted the Forthcoming Executive Decision List and the Council Strategy
when considering items for the work plan. Members would discuss the next meeting
on 7 January 2021 at the relevant item later in the meeting.

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

5.

STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 2ND QUARTER
2020/21

5.1

Rob Ayliffe introduced the performance report for the second quarter of 2020/21
detailing the indicators where the Council was on or ahead of target, within
tolerance range or behind target. 69% were on or ahead of target.

5.2

Members noted the indicators for Children’s Service and the initial response to risk.
This detailed, initial decisions, initial visit, single assessments and Initial Child
Protection Conferences (ICPC). Targets were based on outstanding local
authorities, which was a high bar to reach but performance was improving in this
area. ICPCs was still an area that needed further improvement but there had been
positive signs so there was optimism that this would be back on track.

5.3

There was discussion around placement stability in Children’s Services with the
Council performing less well than statistical neighbours. Timeliness was expected
to be the first area of improvement and quality would follow with stability of
placements likely to then follow. In addition the Council was below target on rereferrals, repeat Children’s Protection Plans and readmissions to care. These were
long-term indicators for quality and would take time to turn around as they often
reflected historical practice, but it was disappointing that improvement was not yet
being shown here. There had been other signs of improvements as demonstrated
in the low number of case audits being judged as inadequate..

5.4

One member asked if detail could be provided on the length of time children were
staying on plans. In response it was stated that there had been significant
improvement and provided assurances that there were small numbers on plans for
two years or more.

5.5

There was a discussion around how indicators were selected as part of the
presentation for this item. It was explained that indicators were flagged up to the
Committee where there were fluctuations. Members received more performance
indicators in the papers for Corporate Scrutiny and more still for Children and
Families Scrutiny.

5.6

One member asked about the number of social workers that an individual child in
care had, emphasising how crucial the relationship between the social worker and
the child was. The member wanted to ensure that issues were being picked up in
the suite of indicators members were provided with. The data on number of social
workers was provided at the Improvement Board but would be included in future for
Corporate Scrutiny.
ACTION
Rob Ayliffe

5.7

Members were shown a slide that demonstrated the balance of care across Adult
Services. This demonstrated reduced demand for long term residential and nursing
care, although the reasons for this may have changed from initially being a result of
the work the Council was carrying out to now also including the impact of Covid-19
where individuals were choosing a different type of care than residential. Another
factor was that community care was also being provided from Covid-19 budgets to
-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

avoid admission to hospital or to help support people leaving hospital sooner. In
future versions of the chart Covid-19 impact would be shown separately.
5.8

One member suggested that the number of clients in community care at a high cost
was going up significantly and asked whether in some cases keeping people in their
own home cost more than putting them in residential care due to the complex
needs. It was explained that the most significant factor leading to this rise was
those clients funded through Covid-19 funding who otherwise would have been
admitted into hospital. For the next quarter this data would be separated out. There
was a discussion on the potential long-term legacy of Covid-19 for the health
requirements of clients and this would need to be monitored. There would be
situations where individuals would have high costs in their own home but this was
regularly reviewed to ensure this was the best solution. Overall the adult social care
budget aside from the Covid-19 spending, which was being funded, was forecast to
be on track.

5.9

The second quarter had shown improved performance for the percentage of service
users in adult services who had a review or reassessment of their needs within the
last 12 months, but it was still below the same quarter of 2019/20. With regards to
reablement the Council was showing strong performance but there was more
fluctuation on repeat reablement episodes. There was service redesign going on in
this area.

5.10

The Committee noted the strong performance for alcohol, opiate and non-opiate
treatment although understood that there had been some slippage against the
percentage of opiate users not representing within 6 months. Covid-19 was taking
up more of the Public Health team’s time and these had been challenging time for
individuals. One member asked whether there had been engagement with those
people who had addictions and asked whether there was an impact of gathering
those who had addiction and mental health problems by acting as an opportunity for
people to get worse rather than better. In response it was explained that wrap
around support was provided to those most in need of support. More information
would be provided to the member in relation to the impact of bringing those with
addictions together.
ACTION
Sarah Scott

5.11

Members were shown charts displaying renewable energy from the Council estate
(excluding schools) over 12 months as well as Council carbon emissions, buildings
and transport (tonnes of CO2e). At end of quarter 1 the council had generated as
much energy as we had done since the end of quarter 3 of the previous year. For
carbon emissions the Council was significantly lower than the same quarter in the
previous year.

5.12

Highways performance in regards to timeliness of repairs had been strong at 99%
at the end of quarter 2.

5.13

Quarter 1 figures showed that the number of killed and seriously injured people had
reduced. One member asked for benchmarking information so that comparisons

-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

could be made with other counties. This would be provided.
ACTION
Rob Ayliffe
5.14

The rate of safe and well visits per 1,000 population had been affected by lockdown
and the targets for the year would not be hit. There had been a backlog from the
previous financial year, and the team had managed to reduce that. Anecdotal
evidence from other services showed similar issues.

5.15

The Committee recognised the continued strong performance for days lost to
sickness absence, which was significantly lower than the national average. In
response to questions it was suggested that working from home had had a positive
effect on this indicator giving more flexibility. It was important to understand the
work life balance of staff and future corporate planning needed to allow for this.

5.16

Members also noted performance on official requests for information released
within the legal time limit. The first lockdown resulted in a backlog of requests, and
there had also been a significant increase in the number of requests and complexity
affecting performance

5.17

The Committee noted the risk register contained within the papers and were shown
a slide that explained how risk was calculated.

5.18

In response to questions it was explained that the data was only providing one
picture of what was happening in service areas and wider performance
management and information gathering that went beyond just numerical data
supplemented this.

6.

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT

6.1

Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources, introduced the report
which detailed that the current forecast of the year end revenue position against a
budget of £468.183 million, based on actual expenditure at the end of August 2020
and forecasts in September was a £7.649 million overspend.

6.2

Members noted that the largest non-COVID budget variance was the £7.422 million
forecast overspend in Children and Families. This was an improvement on the
previous month’s forecast of £1.988 million which was largely due to the
reclassification of costs which had previous been regarded as non-COVID.

6.3

The Children and Families position was being robustly monitored, a sizeable
amount had been added to the budget at budget setting time and it was recognised
that this there was still an overspend. Despite this, the overspend position was
stable rather than exponentially growing.

6.4

One member asked how confident officers were that the additional impact of Covid19 and the economical consequences would not threaten the budget position. In
response it was stated that the Directors and Finance partners met regularly to

-4-

Page 4

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

continue to monitor the position but there was confidence that the risks were
understood and being mitigated.
6.5

In response to a question it was explained that there was a number of funds that
were being provided in relation to Covid-19 spending and this was a complex
picture with ringfenced and unringfenced grants. Members felt it would be helpful to
see a more consolidated picture of what the total funding was available to cover
Covid-19 expenditure.

6.6

One member asked whether the County Council was involved in allocation of
funding to cultural institutions to support them during the Covid-19 pandemic. In
response it was stated that the Council was not involved in these allocations.

6.7

In response to a question on Trevone House, it was stated that it was an impressive
facility and it was important that it was used in the way it had been modelled for with
the right cases. One of the challenges was to ensure individuals did not become
reliant on the resource. Already included within capital budget discussions was the
possibility of additional similar facilities.

6.8

One member noted that in the first wave of Covid-19, grants had been provided to
districts to help support community activity, she asked, was there any intention to
do that now in the second wave? In response it was explained that there was a fine
balance between how much to give and no provision had been made at this stage.
Some thought needed to be given related to the latest grant funding and how
districts could be involved in that discussion. Community help hub calls had
reduced since the first wave but had recently seen a slight increase in demand.
There was a discussion around the vibrant community networks and the
relationships that had built up over this period; this was an important area to
continue to develop in the future.

7.

PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORPORATE RESOURCES 2ND QUARTER
2020/21

7.1

Steve Mawson introduced the performance report for the second quarter outlining
how impressed he had been in terms of the flexibility of the teams and that he was
aware of it being important to guard against ‘burnout’ for staff. During the Christmas
period he was encouraging staff to take a break.

7.2

With regards to Legal Services it was explained that there was sufficient staff to
meet the ambition for a caseload of 12. There was access to additional resource at
Warwickshire County Council. Pressure was created by one or two key members of
staff off work due for various reasons that led to less resilience within the team.
There had recently been a recruitment drive for paralegals as a long-term strategy
to add this level of resilience.

7.3

One member expressed concern about the low performance in relation to the
holding of PDRs with staff. In particular it was noted that PDRs in Children’s
Services were not being completed and that there was high staff turnover in this
-5-

Page 5

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

area. The members sought assurances that this would be improved. In response it
was recognised that this was one of the things that had slipped during the Covid-19
pandemic. It was emphasised that this did not mean that managers weren’t
speaking to staff and supporting them, but that they weren’t formalising this as part
of a review. This would be tolerated for a while but it was expected that
performance would improve in this area going forward. In relation to Children’s
services, some of the turnover was due to the movement from agency staff towards
the recruitment of permanent staff.
7.4

It was explained that a new head of Internal Audit had been recruited and overall no
concerns around resourcing had been raised.

8.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCRUTINY TASK GROUP

8.1

The Committee noted the task group report. The ambitions for the review had been
to understand what the County Council did at present in terms of improving public
participation; explore how effective those processes were; to learn from relevant
outside sources and to make recommendations to enhance public engagement with
the Council.

8.2

The report outlined that the group had met three times from November 2019 to
February 2020 before pausing due to the COVID-19 pandemic and then
reconvening in September. The group reflected on the changes working practices
over that time and the lessons that had been learnt.

8.3

The group had discussed the importance of promoting the current mechanisms of
public engage on the website and through social media as well as asking for a
review to be carried out on consultation processes. In addition a recommendation
had been made to review the County’s Community Charter which set out the way
engagement was carried out between the County Council and communities.

8.4

The Committee recognised that the group had asked that the public representation
pilot which had been carried out by Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee be
made a standing item going forward and be expanded to all other scrutiny
committees. The Chair of the Committee provided some feedback of how
successful the pilot had been discussing the range of topics and representations
that had been discussed.

8.5

There was discussion around the use of YouTube and ensuring the public were
able to listen in and view the committee meetings. It was important that this
continued in the future. Members welcomed all scrutiny meetings being webcast.

8.6

One member made suggestions for an additional recommendation detailing a
facility for supplementary questions to be provided in writing or on an individual’s

-6-

Page 6

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

behalf. Members felt that this needed significant discussion and it was agreed that
an additional meeting of the task group would be held to discuss in more detail.
ACTION
Stephen Bace

9.

ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT

9.1

Cllr Shaun Parsons introduced the Annual Scrutiny Report. The report provided
details on Scrutiny activity 2019-20, as well as the responses to scrutiny task group
recommendations. Simon Harper, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, explained that
following a peer review in 2018, the scrutiny structure had been evaluated and
restructured. Scrutiny in Gloucestershire was well regarded nationally and he
highlighted the significant amount of activity that had taken place over the period
including task groups, joint meetings, and member development activity.

9.2

Members were invited to provide feedback and express their views reflecting on
what had worked well and what needed to be addressed going forward. Members
were informed that views would also be sought from district colleagues and
partners to help form the shape of scrutiny following the next election.

9.3

One member outlined his concerns regarding the split between Health Scrutiny and
Adult Social care scrutiny and felt that this ‘disintegration’ left duplication in some
areas and gaps in others. He stated that a review had been due in the Spring 2020
as per the original motion. He proposed that Democratic Services lead a review that
involved county and district members and officers, and produce a report by the
March 2021 committee meeting and subsequent Council meeting.

9.4

Other members discussed the benefits of the separation of health scrutiny and adult
social care scrutiny and the ability to devote more time to focus on adult social care
particularly during the Covid-19 pandemic. One member emphasised the
importance of finding a place for scrutiny of Public Health that would allow district
members to discuss this which wasn’t catered for in the current arrangements. It
was explained that at the moment there was duplication to try and enable both
committees to look at Public Health.

9.5

Some members felt that it would be better for a new Council to carry out a scrutiny
review rather than let the current Council try and dictate a structure going forward.

9.6

One member outlined that some of the responses to recommendations and
outcomes from committees had not been picked up. It was suggested that there be
a process for Chairs and vice chairs to receive monitoring of these.

9.7

It was suggested that Economic Growth Scrutiny meetings should not be held on
the same day as the Joint Economic Growth Committee meeting. Some members
suggested that there was a lack of clarity over the role of the scrutiny committee
and felt that the Committee’s remit could do with a ‘tidy up’. It was acknowledged
that there had been some joint work planning with the committees to ensure there

-7-

Page 7

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

was no duplication. The Chair of the Committee emphasised that work was being
carried out to improve the effectiveness of the scrutiny activity.
9.8

Members concluded their discussion by revisiting the proposal for a review to be
undertaken. It was explained that any review should be Member led.

9.9

It was agreed that a review of scrutiny would be undertaken following the election
with a range of views and comments on scrutiny sought over the coming months in
preparation. The comments made by members during the discussion, particularly
relating to Health Scrutiny, Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny and
Economic Growth Scrutiny would be included.
ACTION
Democratic Services

10.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR BUDGET SCRUTINY

10.1

The Committee agreed the arrangements for the meeting on 7 January 2021.
Members of he other scrutiny committees would be invited to attend the relevant
discussion with Cabinet Members and Senior Officers.

10.2

The Draft report of MTFS was due to be published for the December Cabinet
Meeting so that would be available to members for this meeting.

10.3

One member noted that this would be a virtual meeting and explained that virtual
meetings alongside physical meetings should be explored in the future. A
procurement process was underway for the technology to allow for this kind of
solution going forward, but this would also depend of legislation allowing for this. It
was suggested that the LGA Improvement and Innovation Board who was doing
some work on this be consulted.

CHAIRMAN
Meeting concluded at 12:35

-8-

Page 8

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on Thursday 7 January 2021 virtually.
PRESENT
Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Joe Harris
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Shaun Parsons

Cllr Nigel Robbins
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Lesley Williams

In attendance:
Cllr Steve Robinson
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Phil Awford
Cllr Lorraine Patrick
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr John Cordwell
Cllr Rachel Smith
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson
Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cabinet Members:
Cllr Richard Boyles, Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet Member for
Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years (Item 1& 4)
Cllr Vernon Smith, Highways and Flood (Item 2)
Cllr Kathy Williams, Adult Social Care Delivery (Item 3)
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin Adult Social Care Commissioning (Item 3)
Cllr Nigel Moor, Environment and Planning (Item 2)
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Finance and Change (Item 1 & 5)
Cllr Dave Norman, Public Protection, Parking and Libraries (Item 2 & 3)
Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Economy, Education and Skills (Item 2 & 4)
Cllr Tim Harman, Public Health and Communities (Item 3)
Officers:
Pete Bungard, Chief Executive
Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources
Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer and Director of Policy, Performance and
Governance

Page 9

Colin Chick, Executive Director of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Sarah Scott, Executive Director of Adult Social Care & Public Health
Mark Preece, Assistant Chief Fire Officer
Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services
Gail Hancock, Interim Director for Children’s Safeguarding & Care
Wendy Williams, Assistant Director for Integrated Children and Families
Commissioning
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser

1.

INTRODUCTION & COUNCIL STRATEGY

1.1

Cllr Richard Boyles, Cllr Lynden Stowe and Pete Bungard discussed the
Council Strategy with members and gave an introduction to budget
scrutiny day. Throughout the day the committee would meet with the
Cabinet Members and Directors under the remit of each Scrutiny
Committee and discuss their areas of the budget.

1.2

Members were advised to consider how effectively the proposed budget
responded to:
 The changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities
 The priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy.
 Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

1.3

The Committee understood that the proposed budget was
£480.458million.
The Budget issued for consultation was based on 1.99% Council Tax
increase and 2.76% National Social Care Levy.
Band D Council Tax of £1,409.22
The Budget Consultation period ran from 18th December 2020 to 15th
January 2021.

1.4

Members were informed that there would be an additional £1.3 million in
funding which would be split between adults and children budget areas.

1.5

There were a number of areas highlighted for members as priorities and
now included in the council strategy including:




Helping children and young people and schools recover from the
pandemic
Delivering the local outbreak management plan,
Addressing health inequalities,

Page 10







Continue to build on the Covid Health Hub,
Leading Covid economic recovery
Major Transport and Infrastructure schemes,
Supporting agile working,
Adapting buildings and estate to fit purpose.

1.6

There was scope for the budget to change further, and Cabinet and
Senior Officers were looking forward to scrutiny’s contribution. It was felt
that Central Government had provided the funds to meet most of the
costs associated with COVID-19.

1.7

For context the Council was having to handle a record number of looked
after children and the consequence of Covid-19 pandemic meant that
there would likely need to be changes to practices across all services.
The frailty of the older population was likely to increase but the adult
single programme had been a success for the Council. There were
pressures on the acute hospital and 200 ‘discharge to assess’ beds had
been provided. Members understood that there were ambitious
infrastructure programmes planned such as the A417 and A419 missing
link.

1.8

Members were reminded that senior officer advice could be sought to cost
up any budget proposals being put forward by opposition groups and
members.

1.9

In response to questions it was explained that the response to climate
change was an integral part of the strategy.

1.10

In relation to the social care levy, it was unknown how long that would
continue. It would likely require national government to do a fundamental
review of adult social care funding to change this. This was a one year
settlement and left scope for changes in future years. Some funding had
been taken from the new homes bonus but there was a net increase of
£1.28 million which would be split with £500,000 for adults, £500,000 into
the cost of children’s social care placements and £280,000 into an
inflation contingency fund relating to contract costs.

1.11

Members discussed the long term public health effects of long Covid,
which were relatively unknown but could create additional budget
pressures in the future.

1.12

There was discussion around the impact of inequality and the work that
had been carried out by the community and voluntary sector. This was
something that members wished to see reflected in funding decisions
going forward. It was emphasised that much of the support through Covid19 had been provided by communities at a very local level, and it was
clear that they had the best understanding of local needs.

Page 11

2.

Environment Scrutiny and Economic Growth

2.1

Cllr Nigel Moor, Cllr Vernon Smith, Cllr Patrick Molyneux and Cllr Dave
Norman outlined the Commissioning Intentions and budget changes
relating to Economy, Environment and Infrastructure. In particular
members noted the following:
















2.2

The majority of growth within the budget looked to cover contracted
inflation and pay increases
The £350,000 cost increase within the budget under in-house traffic
management related to strengthening the team to be able to be
more responsive to requests from members and the public.
A one off cost increase relating to carbon reduction pathway
The team had worked well together during the past nine months
with procurement, finance, legal and communications to achieve
the common goal of minimising the impact of Covid-19
Major schemes continued to move forward despite the disruption.
A high proportion of Council and Cabinet questions related to this
area of the budget putting pressure on teams.
The revised Local Transport Plan would be received by Council in
due course
2020/21 climate change strategy underpinned everything within the
budget
The Council would be in a better than carbon neutral position by
March 2021.
A Bus Service Strategy was being developed to ensure home to
school transport was available for those who needed it including
personalised plans that allowed for social distancing
Resources and Waste Partnership was chaired by non GCC
councilors
Support was being provided with key stakeholders to help the local
economy in response to Covid-19 – including broadband rollout
and reskilling and training in response to job losses. All supported
by library based growth hubs and the innovation lab model.
Working closely with GFirst and partners.
Climate change was likely to result in increased flooding issues and
extreme weather events and there was provision in the budget to
meet this challenge.
Continuing to deliver the £150 million investment in the County’s
roads.

One member suggested that consideration should be given to a more
flexible and innovative approach to home to school transport through in
house provision with specialised training for drivers in working with
vulnerable children and adults. It was suggested that any such budget

Page 12

proposals could be costed up with senior officers and put to the
administration.
2.3

In response to questions it was explained that the Road Safety Cabinet
Panel would be reporting and that funding for proposals from this report
would likely come from in year highways spending, from Fire and Rescue
Service budget and from partners.

2.4

There was a discussion around recent flooding with one member
suggesting that there needed to be clearer signposting for members and
the community to seek support. In response to queries over spending on
flood alleviation, it was explained that £2.1 million was within the budget
each year and that to date £72.8 million had been spent. This was
supported by work carried out in relation to major schemes. Some
member expressed concern about a lack of work carried out in their
areas. Other members provided detail of the work carried out across the
County and stated that Gloucestershire was considered to be the source
of best practice. One member suggested that a scrutiny task group on
flooding should be scoped up to take into consideration new areas of
surface flooding and a need to re map the area prior to new
developments. Members supported this suggestion.
ACTION
Democratic Services

2.5

It was stated that there had been a drop off in parking income over the
previous 12 months as more people were staying home, working from
home and shopping online.

2.6

Members noted the £3m outlined for contract inflation, and it was
explained that this covered contracts across the range of services.

2.7

The new five year library strategy was being developed looking at how to
use them better. Thirty-one libraries were operational across the County
and, while browsing had been stopped due to Covid-19, click and collect
and deliveries had been put in place. One member emphasised the
importance of libraries and was keen to see them utilised further. One
member stated that the Innovation Lab in Coleford had been a success.

2.8

In response to a question it was stated that 97-98% of homes had super
fast broadband access and that it was now about providing for those last
few percent.

2.9

It was explained that the Council was in the fourth year of the £150m
spend on highways with details of the capital spend on page 108 of the
draft MTFS.

2.10

In response to a question it was explained that £1.2m had been budgeted
for removal of ash trees due to the Ash die back disease.

Page 13

2.11

One member provided details of the need for LED lighting in his area, it
was explained that there was £400,000 in the budget for LED street
lighting.

3.

Adult Social Care and Communities

3.1

Cllr Kathy Williams, Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Cllr Tim Harman and Cllr
Dave Norman outlined the Commissioning Intentions and budget changes
detailed in the draft MTFS relating to Adult Social Care and Communities.
In particular members noted the following:











3.2

In addition to the Public Health grant, the Government had provided
additional funding to support the public health response to Covid-19.
Mental Health services were being enhanced.
The ambition for adult social care was to allow people to live as
independently as possible with support rom universal services enhanced
where necessary with specialist services.
The impact on adult social care of current NHS pressures. Attempting to
manage ‘business as usual’ while implementing additional strategies.
Understanding and tackling health inequalities
Local accommodation being provided to allow individuals needing support to
remain in their own communities
A paper was going to the next Cabinet meeting on Preparing for Adulthood
Strategy
Support by district outreach teams for roughs sleepers and those choosing
to remain on the streets.
Support for people who had suffered domestic violence was a key priority
In relation to the Fire and Rescue Service the focus was on continuing the
improvement journey following the HMIC inspection.
One member asked whether the County Council was confident in the
stability of the care home system, given the financial pressures
exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic. In response it was explained that
significant support was given to all care homes and that the
Gloucestershire Care Providers Association met with staff and senior
officers to talk through any issues. In the long term, the sector would face
challenges as client numbers would fall due to individuals choosing to
remain in their own home. It was clarified that under the Care Act there
was a responsibility to manage the care market and there was an
Integrated Brokerage Team to support the market and source packages
of care. The Council was still awaiting the Social Care Green paper and
longer term financial settlement plans for the sector.

Page 14

3.3

A member expressed concern about the above inflation increase in
council tax and the growth in demand for social care funding. He asked
whether the NHS would provide funding for the County Council in relation
to their actions to help relieve pressure as instructed by central
government. In response it was detailed that the Integrated Care System
had provided long established relationships with the CCG and that there
was £35m of ‘joint money’ that could be used to buy the beds being used
by the Local Authority to help relieve pressure on NHS beds. It was
emphasised that we were ‘in this together’ and there was daily contact
between GCC and NHS teams in terms of moving patients safely and
quickly through the system.

3.4

It was explained that the changes to the Money Advice Service was due
to duplication with the Citizens Advice offer.

3.5

In response to concerns about budget decreases in wider Public Health
work it was explained that these were minor decreases and overall there
was much more investment in services relating to domestic abuse, rough
sleepers, children’s weight management, in addition to the additional
grants relating to the pandemic. There was important work to be done on
inequalities and long Covid going forward.

3.6

Some members felt that funding for community groups sometimes went to
larger organisations that would be ‘helicoptered’ in to provide services that
were already being provided by local community groups who had long
established relationships. It was explained that funding for ‘Know your
Patch’ network was about supporting those groups. The Cabinet Member
supported the need for local groups to come together and for this funding
to be used effectively.

3.7

Members welcome the upcoming strategy around preparing for adulthood
which supported transitions up to the age of 25.

3.8

One member raised the importance of the Fire and Rescue Service
budget also providing appropriate equipment and expertise for ‘Rescue’. It
was explained that the service was always looking at ways to respond
more effectively to 999 calls and that if additional equipment was needed
then options involving capital would be explored. One member suggested
that SARA, who carried out a great deal of work on water rescues, receive
a donation to help support them. It was explained that equipment was
donated to SARA but that the Cabinet Member would take on board the
suggestion.

3.9

In response to questions, it was explained that every Fire and Rescue
Service station was a community one and was open for use. The example
was given that Cheltenham East Fire Station was being used as a
vaccination centre for Covid-19.

3.10

Members noted the commissioning intentions for the Adult Care budget
and asked for additional detail on how savings would be realised and how

Page 15

the budget would be used over the coming year. In response it was
explained that the strategy of supporting individuals to remain in their own
home benefitted the individual and helped save money. In additional the
use of technology, particularly over the period of the pandemic provided
additional support in this area.
3.11

The Health and Wellbeing Board would be working with all agencies and
partners and would revisit its work plan at a future meeting to ensure that
the wider implications of projects on health and planning policy were
being considered.

4.

Children and Young People

4.1

Cllr Richard Boyles and Cllr Patrick Molyneux outlined the Commissioning
Intentions and budget changes detailed in the draft MTFS relating to
Children and Young People. In particular members noted the following:











4.2

Gloucestershire’s Children’s Services had been on an Improvement Journey
following the Ofsted Inspection.
There was a significant investment in Vulnerable Children in the budget with
£3m for external placements. This would need to be monitored carefully.
The introduction of Trevone House as a facility to provide the best support
for young people and to help control this budget area
21.2% of the workforce was now agency workers, which was down from
around 50%. This was a more manageable level.
Continuing rise in children in care numbers (800) and those on child
protection plans
Net of Covid-19 current overspend in the service of £7.669 million, the latest
report to cabinet for January would show a £1 million improvement on this.
Small savings within education through the reduction in pension costs
Increase in the number of foster carers
GCC was not unlike other authorities in experiencing challenges in this area
with the LGA identifying a £3bn gap in the children service budget nationally.
A Sufficiency Strategy was in place to attempt to manage the children’s
social care market and ensure the right mix of placements.
Members expressed concern about year on year overspends in the
Children’s budget and suggested that if we know we are going to
overspend would it not make more sense to increase the budget to begin
with? In response it was explained that the budget figures provided in the
draft budget for 2021/22 were felt to be at the right level and was a
realistic budget for the service with the caveat that the placement budget
was still likely to require further resourcing during 2021-22. Currently this
included an additional £3million as well as £1million in contingency for
additional placement costs but this was unlikely to be sufficient given a
combination of rising unit costs, increases in the number of children in

Page 16

care related to the impact of Covid -19 and the time required to deliver our
sufficient strategy. Of the £11.5 million additional money relating to Covid19 it was felt that an element of that would be needed in Children’s Social
Care and that stability was key.
4.3

In response to questions it was explained that there had been a service
improvement action plan in place to recruit 40 new foster carers. The aim
was to increase capacity and build on the support provided. In addition
there was a new offer being developed for an Edge of Care service to
help families to continue with their birth children. Supported by an external
transformation consultant there would be an intensive family preservation
service.

4.4

Trevone House had been up and running for over a month and it was
clarified that there had been no delay. Two residents had moved into the
house in the previous few days. Five young people were in Trevone
House and this put the Council on target.

4.5

SEND funding was complex with a structural deficit of £8.4 million. This
was a school owned deficit not a County Council one but there was no
chance of schools being able to absorb it. The hope wasthat the current
Government SEND review would provide a long term solution. There was
successful funding for a SEMH school to open in 2022/23.

4.6

There was emphasis on the importance of early intervention with one
member talking about the first 1000 days of a child’s life. Early years
provision had led to a significant improvement in school readiness.

4.7

Members noted the scrutiny task group that had made recommendations
feeding into the development of the Youth Strategy. This strategy was not
looking to reduce services but would be looking to provided universal and
specialist services. This would be going to Cabinet in April and then out to
the market. Some members commented that outreach youth work within
communities was an option which should be explored as well as in-house
provision. In response it was explained that the priority was looking at
what was in the best interest of the children and that there was a
balanced view on whether that be in house services or outsourced where
the County did not have provision.

4.8

Members emphasised the importance of being proactive and preemptive
in strategies to identify potential problems to prevent children reaching the
point where they needed to be in care. There was concern about the
potential spike of numbers of referrals in the future as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic. Officers responded by stating that the spike was
expected and that this analysis had been done as part of the budget
setting. It was a recognised risk on the budget.

Page 17

5

Corporate Services

5.1

Cllr Lynden Stowe outlined the Commissioning Intentions and budget
changes detailed in the draft MTFS relating to Corporate Resources. In
particular members noted the following:








There was £600,000 within the budget to enable the transition to Office 365
as well as IT infrastructure and additional software.
There was a specific increase in the budget for legal services for children.
This was a difficult recruitment environment.
£455,000 was held centrally for contract contingency fund in case of contract
inflation.
The commitment to climate change was embedded throughout with the
Council becoming carbon neutral in 2021.
It was emphasised that there was a commitment to our staff to provide the
appropriate accommodation and IT whatever the future held in store.
Alongside this HR support, staff car parking and support around health and
wellbeing was being provided.
One saving identified was in relation to contributions to the pension fund
where, as a result of good returns, it was 100% funded.

5.2 In response to a question it was clarified that the contract contingency fund
was budgeted within Corporate Resources but would be used for contracts
across other services.
5.3 There was a discussion about the continued disposal of property assets. It
was recognised that changing working practices such a social distancing and
working from home would mean that the Council estate would have to be
used in new ways. While there were challenges here there were also cost
savings. It was explained that the quarterly list of disposals was still in
operation and received by Cabinet. One member suggested that when
disposing of land and assets consideration should be given to providing social
housing. In response there was a discussion around affordable and social
housing and the support being provided through large scale development and
capital sales. The Cabinet Member detailed the importance of ensuring best
value from asset sales and that receipts from capital sales were a part of the
budget process. He would like see continued work between the Council and
district colleagues for good quality and design, preferably carbon neutral
housing.
5.4

One member asked how the Council was going to fulfil the commitment made
when declaring a climate emergency to reduce carbon emissions in
Gloucestershire. In response it was explained that the first priority was to ‘get
our own house in order’ and lead by example, setting the right framework for

Page 18

others to follow. The aim to plant 35 million trees in Gloucestershire was also
cited as an example of the actions being taken. There would also be
opportunities for help provide finance and support partners in their actions to
achieve this aim. The administration would welcome any more positive ideas
in formulating the budget and strategy to help in this. Some members
suggested that climate change should receive a higher profile in the Council
Strategy.
5.5 One member expressed surprise that the reserves had not been increased
despite the additional risks the Council had identified over the past year. In
response it was explained that an actual risk assessment of reserves had
been carried out to estimate the appropriate level. In the past a flat
percentage of revenue had been taken to determine the level of general
reserves. There was confidence that the level of general reserves was
adequate after considering the areas of biggest risks and overspends and the
realisation of savings.

6.

Summary

6.1

The Committee had the opportunity to feed back to the Chief Executive
and Cabinet Members on the themes and trends that had been identified
over the course of the day.

6.2

Members had been advised to consider how effectively the proposed
budget responded to:




The changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities
The priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy
Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

While the Committee did not make any formal recommendations, the
significant comments raised by Members against those criteria (minuted
in detail previously) are listed below:
 The response to climate change to have greater prominence within the
Council Strategy with more explicit detail on the direction of travel.
 Recognition of the challenges of long Covid with some members asking that
the need to support people with long Covid be included within the pressures
for adult social care.
 The voluntary community sector needed continued support following the
additional pressures over the pandemic period. Some members’
emphasised the need for a focus on funding for local groups who have
knowledge of communities.

Page 19

 Concerns expressed regarding the long term funding solution for adult social
care and pressure on the Gloucestershire tax payers. Members recognised
that the current financial settlement was for one year with potential changes
in future years.
 Concern about the pressures on the children services budget. Members
noted the assurances that the proposed budget was a realistic one but
recognised the overspending in previous years and unknown implications of
the Covid-19 pandemic.
 One member suggested looking at new ways of providing home to school
transport that would ensure trained drivers and management of costs.
 Members suggested a scrutiny task group on flood alleviation. A one page
strategy would be scoped up with interested members.
 Some members asked for additional details around cost reductions with the
Adult Social Care budget.
 Members recognised the importance of providing stability and support for
the care home market.
 One member asked that consideration be given to how additional support
could be provided to SARA.
 Members noted the timetable for the upcoming Youth Strategy and the
influence of the scrutiny task group on this.
 Recognition of the changing use of office space for County Council staff
going forward, the importance of the appropriate utilisation of assets and the
need for continued improvement in IT provision to allow for effective home
working.

Page 20

Risk Management Framework

Agenda Item 5

Page 21

Darren Skinner
Head of Planning, Performance & Improvement
March 2021

Risk Management Framework
Introduction

Page 22

• Risk moved from ARA into PP&C service – Nov 20
• Outline of today’s discussion - our risk management approach:
o
o
o
o

3 lines of assurance model
Roles and responsibilities
Key documents and tools
Direction of travel

3 lines of assurance

Page 23

1st line

2nd Line

3rd Line

Risks are owned &
managed

Functions that
support & challenge

Independent
assurance

• Managers and teams
• Service and project plans
• Regular reporting
• Training and toolkits

• Support services
• Risk Management Group
• Directors oversight
• Member oversight

• Internal Audit
• External audit
• Inspection

Service
Managers

Member
Oversight
Page 24

• Themed scrutiny
• COSC
• Audit & Governance
Committee

Framework

• Service Plans
• Project/Programme
Registers
• Monthly/quarterly
reporting

Support
Risk Mngt Group
PP&C
Other Corp Res.

Cabinet
• Quarterly oversight
for LCM & Leader
• AGS sign off

Roles and responsibilities
Directors
• Directorate
Leadership Teams
• Strategic Risk
Register Ownership

Corporate
Leadership Team
• Strategic Risk
Register oversight
• Risk Strategy
• Annual Governance
Statement

External
Assurance
Internal Audit
External Audit
Inspection

Key documents
Annual Governance Statement
• Statutory review of governance issues and risk
• Published annually alongside the accounts (Cabinet sign off)
Page 25

Risk Strategy and Policy
• Statutory publication of the organisations risk framework
• 3 year strategy, annually reviewed, (Audit & Governance sign off)
Strategic Risk Register

• Quarterly reported strategic level risks
• Risks owned/reported by Directors, reviewed by CLT & COSC

Future Direction
Our current improvement plan:

Page 26

• Risk Management Group development
• Better presentation of risk info to CLT and COSC
• Testing that the framework is working in practice
o Are we escalating risk appropriately?
o Are we doing what we say we do?

• On the Audit plan for 2021/22

Further Information
• Staffnet
Page 27

o Risk Management pages
o Toolkits/
o Risk Strategy

• GCC website
o Annual Governance Statement

• Darren Skinner – Head of Planning, Performance & Improvement

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview of Corporate Performance
Quarter 3
2020/21
Agenda Item 6

Page 29

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
19th March 2020
Presented by Rob Ayliffe

Overview of performance at the end of Quarter 3

Page 30

Children’s Services – Initial Response to Risk
100%
83%
80%

82%
65%

60%

Initial Decisions
Initial Visits

40%

Single Assessments

Page 31

20%
0%

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Children’s Services - Placement Stability
Children in care who have had 3 or more
placements within 12 months

Children in care for at least 2.5 yrs and in the same
placement for 2 yrs or more
100%

100%

80%

61%

64%

60%

61%

Page 32

60%

59%

68%

80%
60%

40%

40%

20%

20%

18%

20%

18%

17%

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

19%

11.0%

0%

0%
Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

% same placement for more than 2 yrs

Bigger is better

Q3
Statistical
2020/21 Neighbour
Average
2019/20

Target

% 3 or more placements

Smaller is better

Q3
Statistical
2020/21 Neighbour
Average
2019/20
Target

Childrens Services – Repeat Work
100%

80%
60%

Re-referrals

Repeat CP

40%

Page 33

29%
27%

20%

20%

0%
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Readmissions

Childrens Services – Time on Protection Plans
5%
4%
3%

3.1%

2.8%
2.4%

Page 34

2%

2.0%

2.1%

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

2.8%

1%
0%
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

% of children subject to a child protection plan lasting 2 years or more

Statistical
Neighbour Average
2019/20
Target

Adult Services – OP/PD Balance of Care

Page 35

Adult Services – Reviews/Reassessments
100%
80%
60%

Page 36

51%

48%
36%

40%

52%

33%

20%
0%
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

% of service users who have had a review/reassessment of their needs within the last 12 months

Q3 2020/21
Target

Adult Services – Reablement
Number of People Receiving Reablement
250
200

100%

85%

89%

90%

91%

85%

80%
191

60%

168
138

150

131

40%

Page 37

116

29%

33%

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

32%

36%

24%

20%

100

0%

50

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

0
Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

% clients who need no long term care after reablement
Repeat reablement episodes in 12 months

Prevention & Wellbeing – Alcohol, Opiate & Non-Opiate
Treatment
50%

% of adult alcohol misusers who have
left treatment successfully

40%
30%

Page 38

% of all Opiate users not representing
within 6 months of completion of
treatment

20%

% of all Non-Opiate users not
representing within 6 months of
completion of treatment

10%
0%
Q2 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

EE&I – Renewable Energy Generation and Carbon
Emissions
Renewable energy (Kwh) from the Council
estate (excl. schools)
(In-Quarter)
30000000

Tonnes of CO2e (In-Quarter)
3000
2,460

2500

2,471

2000

Page 39

20000000

16,467,661
16,125,919
13,692,113
11,521,098

10000000

1500

1,297

1,151

1,082

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

1000
500

0

44,086
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21

0
Q2
2019/20

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

EE&I - Highways Performance
100%

100% 100%
98%

80%

Page 40

% of 2-hour emergency repairs made
on time

60%

% of 24-hour defects repaired on time
40%
% of 28-day defects repaired or made
safe in time

20%
0%
Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21

EE&I - Number of Killed and Seriously Injured People
(In-Quarter)
100
83

80

80

85

83

60

Page 41

48
40
20
0
Jul-Sep 2019

Oct-Dec 2019

Jan-Mar 2020

Apr-Jun 2020

Jul-Sep 2020

GFRS – Rate of Safe and Well Visits per 1,000
population
5
4

Page 42

3
2.13
2

2.25
1.72

1

0.82

0.91

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

0.27

0
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Statistical
Neighbours
(Quarterly Average
2018/19)

Good Management – Days Lost to Sickness per FtE
10
9

8.68

8.59
7.88

8

7.04

7

6.25

6

Page 43

5
4
3

2.45

2.09

2

1.36

1.09

1.58

1
0
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21
In Quarter

Q2 2020/21
Rolling Year

Q3 2020/21

Good Management – % of official requests for information
released within the legal time limit
100%
80%

Page 44

76%

60%

67%

66%

71%

73%

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

40%
20%
0%
Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

Q1 2020/21

Risk

Page 45

High Risks and Changes to Risk Scores

Page 46

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Quarter 3 Reporting 2020/21

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Page 47

Key to Symbols
Adult Social Care
Prevention, Wellbeing & Communities
Children & Young People
Economy, Skills & Growth
Highways & Flood
Environment & Planning
Public Protection Parking & Libraries
Finance & Change
Strategic Risk Register Summary

Page No.
2
3
5
8
11
13
14
16
17
21

This report has been prepared by the Performance & Improvement Team using data up to 31/12/2020

1

Key to Symbols
Performance better than target

Reporting Basis
Year to Date

Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year

Average performance over a 12 month
period
Performance measured once a year

Performance worse than target
Performance significantly worse than target

Annual

No information
Missing target
No value

Latest
Quarter
Snapshot

Performance this quarter

Forecast

Predicted position at the end of the year

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)
Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Performance at a particular point in time

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)
Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)
No change
Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Page 48

Smaller is
better
Plan is best

A smaller value for this measure is good
Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols  Risk
The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix
Risk
Likelihood
Almost
certain
(5)
Likely
(4)
Probable
(3)
Possible
(2)
Rare
(1)

1
Insignificant

2
Minor

5

10

4

8

Impact/Consequence
3
4
Moderate
Major
15
12

20
16

5
Critical

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with
the Likelihood of each risk)

25
20

3

6

9

12

15

2

4

6

8

10

1

2

3

4

5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low
Moderate
High

16
7 – 12
13 – 25

2

Adult Social Care
Cllr Kathy Williams

/ Cllr Carole AllawayMartin

Employment & Settled Accommodation
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% of Adults receiving secondary Mental
Health services in settled accommodation
% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in
settled accommodation

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is Better

Quarterly

87.0%

87.0%

87.0%

87.0%

88.0%

80.0%

55.2%

Bigger is Better

Monthly

79.8%

79.4%

79.2%

79.2%

79.1%

75.0%

73.1%

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Dec
20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator

Reablement & Preventative
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target

% of clients with more than 1 episode of reablement in
the last 12 months

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

29.3%

Qtr Jun20

32.8%

Qtr Sep20

24.1%

Qtr Dec20

32.2%

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

35.8%

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

Page 49

% of clients who need no long term care after their
period of reablement

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

85.0%

Qtr Jun20

89.4%

Qtr Sep20

90.1%

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

91.1%

85.1%

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

85.0%

n/a

Admissions & Transfers
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential
& nursing care homes per 100,000
Smaller is Better
population
Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per
Smaller is Better
100,000 population

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Dec
20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator

Rolling Year

9.7

9.2

6.7

8.9

9.2

12.0

13.8

Rolling Year

461.6

471.2

458.9

436.3

421.1

472.0

579.2

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Delayed transfers of care from hospital due
to Adult Social Care per 100,000
Smaller is Better
population

Rolling Year

Qtr Sep19

5.06

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

5.04

Qtr Jun20

3.70

Target Sep
20

Qtr Sep20

?

?

3.50

Comments Sep20

DTOC Measures were suspended from 1 March 2020 due to COVID19.

Comparator

3.50

Long Term Care
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment
of their needs within the last 12 months
Average number of weeks an individual waits for a Carers
Assessment

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

51.0%

36.4%

32.7%

48.0%

52.0%

50.0%

n/a

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

3.0

2.6

3.1

2.8

2.2

6.0

n/a

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Dec
20

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

3

Long Term Care
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment
of their needs within the last 12 months
Average number of weeks an individual waits for a Carers
Assessment

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

51.0%

36.4%

32.7%

48.0%

52.0%

50.0%

n/a

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

3.0

2.6

3.1

2.8

2.2

6.0

n/a

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Dec
20

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

Adult Social Care: ASCOF
Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Year in Arrears)
Good
Reporting
Performa…
Basis
High/Low
Social care reported quality of life

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Mar17

Annual

Qtr Mar18

19.7

Qtr Mar19

19.1

Qtr Mar20

19.6

Comparator
Group

Comments Mar20

19.6

19.1

Annual Trend Analysis (BiAnnual) No Target

Page 50

Carer reported Quality of Life

Good
Reporting
Performa…
Basis
High/Low
Bigger is
Better

Qtr Mar14

Qtr Mar16

Annual

Qtr Mar18

7.4

Qtr Mar20

7.4

Comparator
Group

Comments Mar20

7.4

7.4

Learning Disabilities
Annual  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performa…
Basis
High/Low

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Mar16

Annual

Qtr Mar17

8.7%

Qtr Mar18

6.8%

Qtr Mar19

6.4%

Qtr Mar20

3.1%

Comparator
Group

Comments Mar20

0.8%

4.3%

Adult Safeguarding
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% of Section 42 enquiries this quarter where the risk was
reduced or removed

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Qtr Dec19
87.7%

Qtr Mar20
90.4%

Qtr Jun20
90.2%

Qtr Sep20
88.0%

Qtr Dec20
87.3%

Target Qtr
Dec20
84.5%

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group
84.5%

4

Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities
Cllr Tim Harman
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

% of Covid19 cases
referred for Contact
Tracing that have been
completed

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator

For all confirmed cases which have been through contract tracing (either
national track and trace or local contract tracing with a test date between
01/10/2020 and 31/12/2020):
11.8% were classed as failed  This could be because:
86.4% The case is in progress for too long
Someone refusing to take part
Someone was too ill or in hospital and nobody could complete on their
behalf
1.8% uncontactable

Snapshot

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Page 51

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who successfully
Bigger is
completed treatment and
Better
did not represent within 6
months of completion
Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Snapshot

Qtr Sep19

38.8%

Qtr Dec19

39.9%

Qtr Mar20

38.8%

Qtr Jun20

37.4%

Qtr Sep20

36.8%

Target Qtr
Sep20

Comments Qtr Sep20

35.0%

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot

7.5%

7.4%

6.2%

5.9%

5.4%

6.3%

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment, Bigger is
not representing 6 months Better
after completion

Snapshot

33.4%

35.1%

32.5%

32.2%

29.8%

32.2%

Comparator

35.0%

Performance has slightly reduced in this area and due to
covid 19 we are likely to see further reductions in
performance across next 2 quarters. This is due to keeping
service users in treatment for clinical safety during the
pandemic.19 further successful completions would be
required to bring performance into the upper quartile of LA
comparator families..
Performance has slightly reduced in this area and due to
covid 19 we are likely to see further reductions in
performance across next 2 quarters. This is due to keeping
service users in treatment for clinical safety during the
pandemic.
48 further successful completions would be required to
bring performance into the upper quartile of LA
comparator families..

4.9%

30.1%

Due to Covid 19 fewer people are accessing HLS
than would be expected under normal circumstances
hence the lower numbers achieving a risk factor
improvement.

Number of customers who
achieve a significant risk
factor improvement

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

513

480

763

Of those that do access the service those seeking
support to quit achieve a higher success rate than
weight mgt participants. There were fewer people
accessing the service to quit smoking in Q2 than in Q1
which will have impacted on the both the numbers and
% of those achieving improvement this quarter. In
addition, this is the first quarter that the service has
offered weight management support via WW (Slimming
World are not currently operating) and the performance
of this new virtual service has been disappointing. We

n/a

5

1.8% uncontactable

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who successfully
Bigger is
completed treatment and
Better
did not represent within 6
months of completion
Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Snapshot

Qtr Sep19

38.8%

Qtr Dec19

39.9%

Qtr Mar20

38.8%

Qtr Jun20

37.4%

Qtr Sep20

Target Qtr
Sep20

36.8%

Comments Qtr Sep20

35.0%

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot

7.5%

7.4%

6.2%

5.9%

5.4%

6.3%

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment, Bigger is
not representing 6 months Better
after completion

Snapshot

33.4%

35.1%

32.5%

32.2%

29.8%

32.2%

Comparator

35.0%

Performance has slightly reduced in this area and due to
covid 19 we are likely to see further reductions in
performance across next 2 quarters. This is due to keeping
service users in treatment for clinical safety during the
pandemic.19 further successful completions would be
required to bring performance into the upper quartile of LA
comparator families..
Performance has slightly reduced in this area and due to
covid 19 we are likely to see further reductions in
performance across next 2 quarters. This is due to keeping
service users in treatment for clinical safety during the
pandemic.
48 further successful completions would be required to
bring performance into the upper quartile of LA
comparator families..

4.9%

30.1%

Page 52

Due to Covid 19 fewer people are accessing HLS
than would be expected under normal circumstances
hence the lower numbers achieving a risk factor
improvement.

Number of customers who
achieve a significant risk
factor improvement

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

% of pregnant smokers
achieving a 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

77.2%

90.0%

94.0%

513

480

763

88.0%

83.0%

70.0%

Of those that do access the service those seeking
support to quit achieve a higher success rate than
weight mgt participants. There were fewer people
accessing the service to quit smoking in Q2 than in Q1
which will have impacted on the both the numbers and
% of those achieving improvement this quarter. In
addition, this is the first quarter that the service has
offered weight management support via WW (Slimming
World are not currently operating) and the performance
of this new virtual service has been disappointing. We
will be tracking the performance of this provider over
the next 2 quarters to see if performance can be
improved.
The numbers achieving a significant behaviour change
has decreased from 513/745 (69%) in Q1 to 480/792 (61%)
in Q2. This is due to the closing of Slimming World
groups due to COVID and the spike in smoking numbers
that occurred in Q1.
The number of pregnant women achieving a 4 week quit
was 38/46:
HLS38/40
PHE0/6

n/a

n/a

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Sep16

Qtr Sep17

Qtr Sep18

Qtr Sep19

Qtr Sep20

Comments Qtr Sep20
This latest data is for academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was

Comparator

6

PHE0/6

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Sep16

Qtr Sep17

Qtr Sep18

Qtr Sep19

Qtr Sep20

% Reception Children
overweight including
obesity

Smaller is
Better

Annual

22.2%

24.3%

23.8%

22.0%

% Year 6 Children
overweight including
obesity

Smaller is
Better

Annual

32.1%

31.1%

32.1%

31.9%

Comments Qtr Sep20

This latest data is for academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19 and the subsequent published data
23.8% (released during Q3 20/21) has been deemed sufficient for publication but
unreliable for benchmarking purposes. It is anticipated that the
measurement programme will not be reinstated until early 2021.
Data shown here is for the academic year 2019/20. Gloucestershire is in the
upper middle quartile of the comparator group.NCMP data for this indicator
32.3%
was deemed reliable at publication and the comparison measure is made
against only those comparators with reliable data (n=11)

Comparator

?

32.1%

Three Year Average Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Suicide rate per 100,000
Population

Smaller is
Better

3Year
Average

Qtr Dec14
(1315)

Qtr Dec15
(1416)

?

10.6

Qtr Dec16
(1517)

10.8

Qtr Dec17
(1618)

9.8

Qtr Dec19
(1719)

10.2

Target Qtr
Dec19

10.1

Comments Qtr Dec19
The figure reported covers the three year period (2017
2019). The Gloucestershire rate is in line with the national
average; and has remained relatively steady since the
201315 reporting period. The Gloucestershire suicide
prevention strategy is due to be refreshed in 20/21 and
will be informed by the findings of the suicide audit
(covering deaths from suicide between 2016 and 2018).

Comparator

10.9

Page 53
7

Deputy Leader of the Council & Children & Young People
Cllr Richard Boyles
Contact Activity
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Initial Decisions made
within 24 hours for all
contacts
% of referrals to Social
Care that are rereferrals
within 12 months
% Initial visits in time

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot

86.6%

92.9%

92.9%

92.4%

64.7%

90.0%

n/a

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

28.4%

29.9%

33.1%

29.8%

29.0%

24.0%

22.5%

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0%

88.0%

87.0%

86.0%

82.3%

85.0%

n/a

Children In Need
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

Page 54

Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

% of Single Assessments
completed within 45
working days
% of Children in Need who
have been on a plan for 12
months or more

Bigger is
Better

Latest Quater

Smaller is
Better

Snapshot

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

77.0%

82.0%

81.0%

84.0%

83.0%

85.0%

84.3%

6.0%

7.4%

7.6%

6.0%

6.0%

10.0%

n/a

Children in Need of Help & Protection
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Children becoming
the subject of a Child
Protection Plan for a
second or subsequent time
% of Children subject to
Child Protection Plans
lasting 2 years or more

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Smaller is
Better

Snapshot

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group

26.2%

32.5%

30.6%

32.8%

26.5%

25.0%

23.3%

2.8%

2.4%

2.0%

2.1%

3.1%

2.0%

2.8%

8

Children in Care
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Children waiting less
than 14 months between
entering care & moving in
with their adoptive family

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

25.0%

Qtr Jun20

?

Qtr Sep20

?

Qtr Dec20

?

Comments Dec20

Comparator

?

65.7%

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Page 55

% of Children in Care with
at least 3 placements in
the last 12 months
% of Children in Care for
more than 2.5 years in the
same placement for at
least 2 years
% of Children who are
fostered who are placed
with the inhouse fostering
service
% Children in Care (CIC)
reviewed in timescales
% of Children admitted to
care who have previously
been in care (readmissions)
% Children in Care
persistently absent

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator

Smaller is
Better

Snapshot

18.2%

20.1%

17.5%

17.3%

19.2%

13.0%

11.0%

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot

60.5%

64.1%

60.3%

60.9%

59.2%

65.0%

68.0%

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot

66.6%

?

?

69.0%

66.0%

70.0%

n/a

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0%

98.3%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

98.0%

n/a

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

15.4%

13.0%

29.2%

19.0%

19.8%

12.7%

12.7%

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

17.4%

20.0%

11.9%

n/a

Children Leaving Care
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Young People aged
1921 who were looked
after aged 16 who were in
suitable accommodation
% of Young People aged
1921 who were looked
after aged 16 who were not
in employment, education
or training

Youth Support

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Comments Dec20

Comparator

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0%

91.0%

91.0%

94.0%

93.0%

95.0%

80.7%

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

43.0%

50.0%

57.0%

49.0%

48.0%

45.0%

38.6%

9

or training

Youth Support
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Young People
(academic age 1617) not Smaller is
in education, employment Better
or training (NEET)

Snapshot

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

2.5%

Qtr Jun20

2.4%

Qtr Sep20

2.8%

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

2.4%

2.6%

Comments Qtr Dec20

4.5%

Comparator
Group

4.5%

Quality Assurance
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Children open to
Social Care with fewer
than 3 Social Workers in 6
months

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Dec19

Corporate
Data Set

Qtr Mar20

81.0%

Qtr Jun20

78.0%

Qtr Sep20

79.0%

Qtr Dec20

79.0%

Comments Dec20

78.0%

Comparator
Group

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

Page 56

Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

% of audits judged as
Bigger is
Requires Improvement (RI)
Better
or better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

73.0%

Qtr Mar20

80.0%

Qtr Jun20

81.0%

Qtr Sep20

86.0%

Qtr Dec20

87.0%

Target Qtr
Dec20
85.0%

Comments Dec20

Comparator
Group
n/a

10

Economy, Education & Skills
Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Economic Development
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Page 57

Amount of Local Growth
Deal funding contracted for
project delivery between
Gloucestershire County
Council as accountable
body and individual
promoters following GFirst
LEPs instructions
Value of Planning
Agreements signed to
support provision of
Highways &
Education/Libraries (£000)
% of premises with next
generation broadband
access (NGA) Superfast

Plan is Best

Latest
Quarter

Bigger is
Better

Bigger is
Better

Total Unemployment
Smaller is
Related Benefits Claimants
Better
as % of 16  64 year olds

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

£79,451

£83,979

?

£96,958

Year to Date

£3,266

£0

£456

£366

Latest
Quarter

94.0%

94.8%

95.4%

95.7%

Latest
Quarter

2.0%

4.7%

4.9%

Comparatlor
Group

Comments Qtr Dec20

£101,258

We have contracted £101.258 million which is 99.55% of the total £101.716
million funding available

£345 One agreement signed to the value of £345,000

95.8%

n/a

n/a

n/a

4.5% of 1664 years olds in Gloucestershire are making unemployment
related benefits claims. This is down from a peak in August 2020 (5%) and
compares favourably to the South West and England which both have higher
4.5%
levels of claimants at 4.9% and 6.4% respectively. However, the proportion of
claimants in Gloucestershire remains higher than at the end of March 2020
(2%), reflecting the impact of lockdown on businesses and employments.

n/a

Schools
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Number of Education Health and Care
Plans

Plan is Best

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

3,922

Qtr Jun20

3,954

Qtr Sep20

4,076

Qtr Dec20

4,185

Comments Dec20

4,322

Comparator
Group
n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Dec
20

Comments Dec20
Although the number of permanent
exclusions in the quarter is less than target

Comparator
Group

11

Schools
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Number of Education Health and Care
Plans

Qtr Dec19

Latest
Quarter

Plan is Best

Qtr Mar20

3,922

Qtr Jun20

3,954

Qtr Sep20

4,076

Qtr Dec20

4,185

Comparator
Group

Comments Dec20

4,322

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Latest
Quarter

% of pupils attending good or
outstanding Primary Schools

Bigger is
Better

% of pupils attending good or
outstanding Secondary Schools
% of good or outstanding Early Years
Settings

Bigger is
Better
Bigger is
Better

Page 58

Number of pupils permanently excluded Smaller is
(all pupils)
Better

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Dec
20

Comparator
Group

Comments Dec20
Although the number of permanent
exclusions in the quarter is less than target
and lower than the previous year this will
have been impacted by some children
having to isolate during the term due to
COVID.
Following the suspension of routine Ofsted
inspections of schools in March 2020, the
proportion of children attending good or
outstanding Primary, Secondary and Early
Years setting remains the same in Quarter 3.
Since September 2020, Ofsted have carried
out monitoring visits at 16 schools in
Gloucestershire (12 Primary, 3 Secondary,
and 1 Alternative Provision). These visits are
not graded.

31

34

0

8

27

35

n/a

Snapshot

85.0%

85.0%

85.0%

86.0%

86.0%

85.0%

Snapshot

80.0%

80.0%

80.0%

81.0%

81.0%

80.0%

n/a

Snapshot

91.0%

91.0%

91.0%

91.0%

91.0%

91.0%

n/a

n/a

Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% points gap between disadvantaged
pupils and their peers at Key Stage 2
(achieving expected standard or above
in Reading, Writing and Maths)

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Smaller is
Better

Academic
Year

Academic
Year 16/17

27.0%

Academic
Year 17/18

28.0%

Academic
Year 18/19

Academic
Year 19/20

28.0%

Comments Academic Year 19/20



% points gap between disadvantaged
pupils and their peers at Key Stage 4
(achieving A*  C in English and Maths)

Smaller is
Better

Academic
Year

17.3%

17.4%

?

Although no data is available, the gap between the
achievement of vulnerable children (those with
SEND, disadvantaged pupils eligible for free school
meals, minority ethnic groups and children known to
 social care) and their peers is a significant
concern and is expected to widen. Provision for the
children and young people most at risk has been
supported in a number of ways by schools and the
Local Authority.

The SEN/NonSEN gap  achieving
expected standard or higher at KS2 in
Reading, Writing & Maths

Smaller is
Better

Academic
Year

57.0%

60.0%

?



Comparator
Group

28.0%

?

60.0%

12

Highways
Cllr Vernon Smith
Highways
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

% of 2 hour emergency
repairs made on time
% of 24 hour defects
repaired on time
% of 28 day defects
repaired or made safe in
time
% of structural
maintenance programme
delivered

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Bigger is
Better
Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter
Latest
Quarter

Bigger is
Better
Bigger is
Better

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Dec
20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Qtr Dec20

Comparator
Group

88.0%

82.0%

98.0%

99.0%

98.0%

96.0%

n/a

93.0%

86.0%

99.0%

99.0%

100.0%

96.0%

n/a

Latest
Quarter

95.0%

86.0%

98.0%

99.0%

100.0%

95.0%

n/a

Latest
Quarter

71.0%

95.0%

44.0%

73.0%

87.0%

80.0%

n/a

Annual  Calendar Year Trend Analysis  No Target

Page 59

Overall resident
satisfaction with Highways
network

Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Bigger is
Better

Annual

Qtr Dec16

Qtr Dec17

53.0%

Qtr Dec18

52.0%

Qtr Dec19

51.0%

Qtr Dec20

52.0%

Comments Qtr Dec20

Comparator
Group

52.0%

n/a

Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of principal roads where
maintenance should be
considered
% of the Nonprincipal
classified roads where
maintenance should be
considered

Qtr Mar16

Qtr Mar17

Qtr Mar18

Qtr Mar19

Target Mar
20

Qtr Mar20

Comments Qtr Mar20

Comparator
Group

Smaller is
Better

Annual

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

n/a

Smaller is
Better

Annual

4.0%

5.0%

5.0%

5.0%

6.0%

6.0%

n/a

Floods
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% delivery of the annual
gully emptying programme Bigger is
(as published on the
Better
website)

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

?

Qtr Jun20

?

48.0%

Qtr Sep20

81.0%

Qtr Dec20

97.0%

Target Qtr
Dec20

75.0%

Comments Qtr Dec20

Comparator
Group

n/a

13

Environment & Planning
Cllr Nigel Moor

Climate Change
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Renewable energy
generation (kWh) from the
Councils Estate (exc
schools)

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date

Qtr Sep19

65,928

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

11,587,026

28,054,687

Qtr Jun20

13,692,113

Qtr Sep20

29,818,032

Comments Qtr Sep20
Significant increase in generation compared to Q2 2019/20, including:
rooftop solar PV on Shire Hall, The Main Place Coleford and Cirencester
Fire Station; and electricity generation from Javelin Park Energy from Waste
facility.

Comparator
Group

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Page 60

Council Carbon Emissions,
Smaller is
buildings & transport (exc
Better
schools) Tonnes of CO2e

Year to Date

Qtr Sep19

2,846.49

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

5,306.40

7,783.44

Qtr Jun20

1,156.57

Qtr Sep20

2,232.96

Target Qtr
Sep20

Comments Qtr Sep20

2,609.00

Comparator
Group

Significant drop in corporate emissions due largely to
Covid19 impacts, especially and members working from
home. Emissions against the same period 2019/20:
Q2 YTD
Q2 YTD
%
Area GHG
2019
2020
Change
Buildings
1,239
1,259
+2%
Includes pool car
n/a
Fleet, inc GFRS
299
214
28%
use
Street lighting, etc
981
834
15%
Staff business
348
161
54%
mileage
Total
2,866
2,468
14%

Waste
Yearly Trend Analysis  Forecast Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Residual household waste
per household (Kgs)
% of household waste sent
for reuse, recycling and
composting

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
Outturn
2019/20
2019/20

Q1 Forecast Q2 Forecast Q3 Forecast Target
Outturn
Outturn
Outturn
Outturn Qtr
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21
Dec20

Comments 2020/21

Comparator
Group

Smaller is
Better

Forecast

479

454

440

446

464

479

n/a

Bigger is
Better

Forecast

51.0%

50.7%

52.7%

52.7%

52.0%

51.0%

n/a

Road Safety
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target  One Quarter in Arrears
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis

July
September

October 
December

January
March 2020

AprilJune
2020

July
September

Forecast
July
September

14
Comments JulySeptember 2020

Comparator
Group

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target  One Quarter in Arrears
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Number of killed and
seriously injured people

Smaller is
Better

Calendar
Year to Date

July
September
2019
236

October 
December
2019
316

January
March 2020
85

AprilJune
2020
133

July
September
2020
216

Forecast
July
September
2020
222

Comments JulySeptember 2020

Comparator
Group
n/a

Page 61
15

Public Protection, Parking & Libraries
Cllr Dave Norman
Fire & Rescue
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Qtr Dec20

Latest
Quarter

2.13

1.72

0.27

0.82

0.91

2.35

% of Safe and Well visits
Bigger is
undertaken to those in high
Better
risk groups

Latest
Quarter

80.0%

83.0%

81.6%

86.0%

86.4%

75.0%

Number of Accidental
Dwelling Fires

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

55

66

53

63

62

68

Average Response times to Smaller is
dwelling fires
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.32

8.47

10.27

9.00

Page 62

Number of Safe and Well
Bigger is
visits undertaken per 1,000
Better
population (HFSC)

The move back into a lockdown in Q3 resulted in slightly fewer referrals
being made to the Service. The fulltime CSAs focussed on very high
risk referrals and the wholetime watches began to undertake Safe and
Well more regularly, which increased the number of visits completed.
The Service is completing up to 86% of all referrals each month.
In line with NFCC Strategic Intention v4, GFRS is undertaking Safe and
Well visits for people identified as High Fire Risk. This category would
meet the definition in the new GFRS risk matrix of high and high
immediate. We have seen an increase in vulnerability during the
pandemic which has meant that an increasing % of referrals are in high
risk groups.
Incidents remain better than forecast and our comparator group.
Better than target
There has been a stark increase in our average response time to
dwelling fires in Q3. This is partly due to 7 incidents having a
geographical location that has a predetermined run time of over the 9
minute target. One of these incidents had a run time of 23 minutes. In
all cases our appliances matched the predicted run time, but this will
nonetheless have an adverse effect on the average response time in Q3.

Libraries
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Number of lighttouch
business interactions
supported by the Growth
Hubs

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date

Qtr Dec19

228

Qtr Mar20

161

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

0

Qtr Dec20

5

Comments Qtr Dec20

1

16

Finance & Change
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Human Resources
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
GCC Turnover (staff
leaving as a % of all staff)
Turnover of all adults
social workers and senior
practitioners
Turnover of all children's
social workers and senior
practitioners

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Qtr Dec20

Comparator

Smaller is
Better

Rolling Year

10.8%

9.7%

10.3%

9.2%

9.3%

n/a

Smaller is
Better

Rolling Year

10.4%

13.9%

12.5%

13.0%

10.1%

n/a

Smaller is
Better

Rolling Year

12.5%

12.6%

12.6%

11.2%

15.1%

n/a

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Smaller is
Better
Bigger is
% of appraisals completed
Better

Latest
Quarter
Latest
Quarter

Page 63

Days lost to Sickness per
FTE (excluding Schools)

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

2.45

2.09

1.36

1.09

1.58

1.80

68.3%

69.0%

9.8%

20.3%

26.7%

100.0%

Comments Qtr Dec20

Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Employee Engagement
Index

Qtr Mar20

Bigger is
Better

Target
Annual Dec Annual Dec Annual Dec Annual Dec Annual Dec
Annual Dec
16
17
18
19
20
20

Annual

93.4%

94.4%

?

95.0%

Comments Annual Dec20
The Employee Engagement Survey has been delayed due to Covid19.
Results expected within Q4.

Finance & Audit
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target

Audit recommendations
outstanding beyond target
date

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

?

Qtr Jun20

?

Qtr Sep20

?

Qtr Dec20

Comments Qtr Dec20
The current ARA action plan includes the action for review
& update of the ARA recommendation monitoring approach
9 – i.e. to ensure ownership of actions and confirmation of
action implementation is within the business. This will be
completed over the next year.

?

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
% of Council Savings
Portfolio Achieved

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19
78.4%

Qtr Mar20
76.1%

Qtr Jun20
60.5%

Qtr Sep20
69.9%

Qtr Dec20
85.9%

Target Qtr
Dec20
80.0%

Comments Qtr Dec20

17

Index

Better

Results expected within Q4.

Finance & Audit
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low
Audit recommendations
outstanding beyond target
date

Smaller is
Better

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec19

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

?

Qtr Sep20

?

Qtr Dec20

?

Comments Qtr Dec20
The current ARA action plan includes the action for review
& update of the ARA recommendation monitoring approach
9 – i.e. to ensure ownership of actions and confirmation of
action implementation is within the business. This will be
completed over the next year.

?

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

Target Qtr
Dec20

% of Council Savings
Portfolio Achieved

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.4%

76.1%

60.5%

69.9%

85.9%

80.0%

Forecast Revenue Budget
Outturn % Variance

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

0.0%

0.1%

3.3%

1.8%

0.4%

0.0%

Latest
Quarter

4.3%

4.3%

4.0%

4.0%

4.0%

4.0%

Page 64

Uncommitted general
Bigger is
reserves as a % of revenue
Better
budget

Comments Qtr Dec20

Budget £506.079 million outturn of £507.809 million forecast which
equates to an overspend of 0.37% of the revised Net Budget following
the receipt of additional Covid19 funding.

Legal
Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Number of FOIs & EIRs

Plan is Best

Number of Information
Security breaches

Smaller is
Better

Number of SARs

Plan is Best

Latest
Quarter
Latest
Quarter
Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Qtr Dec20

265

307

312

235

263

256

82

81

101

Comments Qtr Dec20

Number of FOI/EIR closed in the quarter is 350, with 93 being responded to after the time
limit.
% of FOI/EIR requests
responded to on time

Bigger is
Better

Quarterly

67.0%

77.0%

75.0%

% of SAR requests
responded to on time

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

42.0%

41.0%

68.0%

There has been a slight decrease in performance from the previous quarter. However,
throughout the year there has been an increase in performance, resulting from additional
temporary resource being put in place.
Number of SARs closed in the quarter is 63, with 20 being responded to after the time
limit.
Requests of a complex and large volume nature continue to be received, meaning
demand is still exceeding capacity and a backlog of requests is growing.
There are ongoing capacity issues, both in the corporate team and across the council.
A review of capacity has been completed.
Performance is currently further impacted due to COVID19, in particular for those with
school aged children and ongoing ICT issues, specifically in relation to Adobe Pro our
specialist software.

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good

Reporting

Target Qtr

18

specialist software.

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

Qtr Sep20

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

Comments Qtr Dec20
Number of official requests for information closed: 413
Number of official requests for information closed out of time: 113

% Official requests for
information responses
released within legal time
limit

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

67.0%

76.0%

66.0%

71.0%

73.0%

90.0%

Number of Cases Upheld
by Local Government
Ombudsman

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

1

6

3

2

2

2

Performance is being monitored by the Information Board and measures
identified that aim to improve performance.
There are ongoing capacity issues, both in the corporate team and
across the council.
A review of capacity has been completed and plans underway to
implement changes.
Performance is currently further impacted due to COVID19, in
particular for those staff with school aged children, and ongoing ICT
issues, mainly in relation to our specialist software for redaction of
disclosures.

ICT / Property
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target

Page 65

Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Total number of ICT
Priority 1 incidents raised
per quarter
Funds raised from asset
sales (Capital receipts)
(£000)

Smaller is
Better

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Dec19

Latest
Quarter

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

5

£12,200

Qtr Sep20

8

3

£3,216

£22

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

3

£1,355

Comments Qtr Dec20

3

£1,696

3

£5,000

Capital receipts achieved in Q3 = £1,696,000
Two properties sold; Prestbury Day Centre, Cheltenham for £1,040,000
and Mere Hill Farm, Dymock for £656,000.
Capital receipts achieved to date for 2020/21 is £3,072,614.
AMPS expect to achieve capital receipts of £7.165m for 2020/21 by
March 2021.

SHE
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Number of RIDDOR
reportable incidents

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20
2

Qtr Jun20
0

Qtr Sep20
0

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20
1

1

Comments Qtr Dec20
2

Comparator
Group
n/a

19

ICT / Property
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low
Total number of ICT
Priority 1 incidents raised
per quarter
Funds raised from asset
sales (Capital receipts)
(£000)

Smaller is
Better

Bigger is
Better

Qtr Dec19

Latest
Quarter

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Mar20

Qtr Jun20

5

£12,200

Qtr Sep20

8

3

£3,216

£22

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20

3

£1,355

Comments Qtr Dec20

3

£1,696

3

£5,000

Capital receipts achieved in Q3 = £1,696,000
Two properties sold; Prestbury Day Centre, Cheltenham for £1,040,000
and Mere Hill Farm, Dymock for £656,000.
Capital receipts achieved to date for 2020/21 is £3,072,614.
AMPS expect to achieve capital receipts of £7.165m for 2020/21 by
March 2021.

SHE
Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Reporting
Performance
Basis
High/Low

Page 66

Number of RIDDOR
reportable incidents

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

Qtr Dec19

Qtr Mar20
2

Qtr Jun20
0

Qtr Sep20
0

Target Qtr
Dec20

Qtr Dec20
1

1

Comments Qtr Dec20
2

Comparator
Group
n/a

20

Strategic Risk Register Summary
Strategic Risk 1: Corporate Governance
Ref.
SR1.1

Risk

Owner

Failure in corporate governance which leads to service, financial,
Ayliffe, Rob
legal or reputational damage or failure.

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Inherent Risk
High 20

High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20
High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
No new risks or issues emerging in relation to
corporate governance.

Moderate 8

Strategic Risk 2: Financial
Ref.

Risk

Reductions and changes to funding in 2021/22 and any
SR2.4a additional unplanned overspends from 2020/21, with the
potential to impact Core Services.

SR2.4b

Owner

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Blacker, Paul

High 25

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Reductions and changes to funding for 2022/23 and 2023/24,
potentially impacting, in particular, Core Services

Blacker, Paul

High 25

High 20

High 15

Risk

Owner

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The provisional Finance Settlement was announced on
17th December 2020 and funding levels were
largely in line with expectations enabling the Council
to set a balance budget for 2021/2022. The Council is
still forecasting an overspend in 20/21 as a result of
higher than anticipated demand in Childrens
Services but it is currently estimated that this
overspend will be covered by underspends elsewhere
and / or reserves.
The provisional Finance Settlement announced in
December 2020 only covered one financial year
therefore considerable uncertainty remains about
funding levels in 2022/23 and 2023/24. It is
anticipated that there will be a Comprehensive
Spending Review in autumn 2021 where further
clarity will be given regarding medium term funding
levels.

Page 67

Strategic Risk 2: Financial (New Qtr 3 19/20)

Ref.

SR2.8

The cumulative impact of service pressures, particularly the
financial impact of COVID19, increased demand in Children and
Adults social care and Educational High Needs, potential grant
Blacker, Paul
reductions and the under delivery of planned savings will result
in major overspend positions in 2020/21.

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Inherent Risk

High 25

High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 12

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Following the announcement of additional COVID
related funding from central government, including an
extension of this funding into the new financial year,
the Council is forecasting that this funding will be
sufficient to cover the financial impact of the
pandemic. There continue to be significant nonCOVID
related financial pressure within Chldren's Services
and Educational High Needs  both areas are being
monitored very closely. Any year end overspend in
Children's Services will be covered by underspends
elsewhere and / or the use of General Reserves. The
High Needs overspend will be carried forward and a
financial recovery plan is being developed.

Moderate 12

Strategic Risk 3: Infrastructure
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The Worksmarter digital programme is now well
established, through which we are able to support
technology by increasing internal capability, and
commissioning a higher performing enterprise support
contract that will be in place by April 2021. We expect
these measures to reduce the risk level during 21/22
Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place'
field held on the Strategic Risk Register:

SR3.1

Failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including
communications abilities) remains fit for purpose.

Quayle,
Mandy

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

Director level ownership of the ICT Managed Service
contract with Sopra Steria
ICT client team staffing structure redeveloped  e.g.
greater engagement with all Directorates via new ICT
Business Relationship team, underpinned by an
internal Strategy & Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT operational
risks and issues are appropriately managed
ICT Strategy and strategic roadmap in place to
address ageing and legacy technological products and
solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to
address a legacy of underinvestment in technology

21

SR3.1

Ref.

Failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including
communications abilities) remains fit for purpose.

Quayle,
Mandy

Risk

Owner

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

Strategic Risk 3: Infrastructure
Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

internal Strategy & Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT operational
risks and issues are appropriately managed
ICT Strategy and strategic roadmap in place to
address
ageing
and legacy technological products and
Mitigating
Actions
solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to
address a legacy of underinvestment in technology
and digital solutions
Significant change activities have been undertaken to
modernise/stabilise critical infrastructure, focused on a
journey to cloud technologies via improved WAN /
LAN / telephony / WiFi services.
On going management of Sopra Steria via Directors
due to succession of failures with critical ICT
infrastructure and service delivery  service
improvement plans.
Worksmarter Digital Programme underway to
implement a new Digital and ICT operating model
There is an increase prevalence of Ransomware
attacks within both council and major suppliers. As an
organisation we are being extra vigilant. Although this
quarter we are not changing the risk rating we are
mindful this situation can change quickly and are
therefore keeping this under review.
Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place'
field held on the Strategic Risk Register:

Page 68

SR3.2

Failure to protect the council's key information and data from
Cyber Attack.

Quayle,
Mandy

Risk

Owner

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

ICT Managed Service contract with Sopra Steria in
place to provide technological controls and measures
against cyber attack
ICT client team staffing structure re
developed  e.g. closer working with the Information
Management Service.
Governance in place via the Information Board to
ensure any technical and nontechnical operational
risks and issues are appropriately managed
Cyber & Information Management (Procurement)
Policy in place
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to
address a legacy of underinvestment in technology
and digital solutions
The annual Independent IT health check has been
completed and remediating any issues found in
partnership with suppliers.
Significant change activities have been undertaken to
modernise/stabilise critical infrastructure, e.g.
telephony, WiFi, videoconferencing, etc.
Regular communications are circulated
and training provided to ensure that staff are fully
aware of their responsibilities to help in the fight
against cybercrime.
Worksmarter Digital Programme underway to
implement a new Digital and ICT operating
model incorporating greater control and management
of data and information across the council
Independent advice has been taken regarding recent
attacks against our outsourced supplier (Sopra Steria)
Internal audit conducting a cyber audit in Q1 2021

High 15

Strategic Risk 5: Organisational Change Programmes (New Qtr 3 19/20)
Ref.

SR5.3

Provider failures result in the council being unable to achieve its
strategic objectives

Scott, Sarah

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Inherent Risk

High 25

Moderate 10

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

High 15

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Covid19 has exacerbated the risk associated with
provider failure  these include financial risk from
reduced placements and packages for new service
users / selffunders, the impact of increased loss of
service users / service users from Covid19, as well as
the ability to deliver safe levels of care with reduced
workforce (sickness absence, shielding, caring
responsibilities). Integrated Commissioning &
Brokerage are working alongside providers, adult
social care, CHC, safeguarding colleagues, CQC and
others to manage specific risks.

High 20

22

Strategic Risk 6: Collaborative Working
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions

others to manage specific risks.

Strategic Risk 6: Collaborative Working
Ref.

SR6.1

Risk

Owner

Failure to maintain effective relationships with key partners and
organisations and shared funding arrangements, impacting on
Bungard, Pete
our ability to meet statutory and local requirements.

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The Coronavirus pandemic has taken priority over the
last 10 months and continues to do so, seeing highly
effective and very positive working relationships with
partners and organisations to meet statutory and local
requirements. The LRF, other emergency
management functions and business continuity
arrangements have ensured the county continues to
meet its statutory and local requirements effectively.

High 20

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

County and District Leaders' meeting have now
ceased but Leadership Gloucestershire meetings
continue, albeit remotely, and have taken over the
COVID 19 updating function that the County and
District Leaders' meeting was set up to establish.
Leader's Stocktake meetings; regular MP briefings
with Health; and the COVID 19 Member Engagement
and Public Health Assurance Boards continue and will
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Page 69

SR7.1

Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah

High 20

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

SR7.2

Ineffective social care practice, management oversight and
review processes resulting in drift and delay for children and
young people in situations of harm.

Spencer, Chris

High 25

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

SR7.4

Failure to close the gaps in educational outcomes for vulnerable
learners and their peers resulting in adverse impacts for children
Spencer, Chris
and families, increased cost/pressures on specialist provision
and damage to reputation.

High 20

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

SR7.5

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to discontinuity in social engagement with children
and families

Spencer, Chris

High 16

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Scott, Sarah

High 20

High 15

High 15

High 15

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Safeguarding Adults team continues to screen and
triage all concerns raised with GCC. The Safeguarding
Adults Board is currently undertaking 4 Safeguarding
Adults reviews, to promote further learning across the
multi agency partnership in adult safeguarding
practice. The Board continues to meet quarterly and
all sub groups are meeting regularly via virtual
platforms.
Performance has continued to improve over this
period, particularly response to risk and visiting. The
enduring impact of Covid and fragility of our ICT
systems are having an impact. Repeat activity
continues to be an area of focus
Closing the gaps and reducing the risks is the highest
priority for the Local Authority and for schools.
Provision for the children and young people most at
risk has been supported in a number of ways
including the strategic use of intervention funding in
schools. The Local Authority provides advice and
guidance related to the use of catchup funding; work
alongside other agencies e.g. the Education
Endowment Fund to ensure that best practice is
widely disseminated. Schools causing concern
continue to be closely monitored and supported.
Investment has been made by the Local Authority,
schools and settings in the recovery curriculum and
ensuring that resources are available to support well
being and to address the social, emotional and mental
health needs that have increased as a result of the
Covid19 crisis.
Our workforce profile has improved over this quarter
as we have continued to reduce our agency % and
absorb our ASYE, students and overseas workforce.
Despite Covid our attendance has also remained
strong although a degree of fatigue and weariness is
evident.
We continue to develop Home First with the Lead
Provider GHC in order to maximise home based
packages for all of those who need them. Where we
do not have the capacity within the service then GHC
are working with Winter Alliance of providers who are
providing care hours to bolster the existing service.
With people coming home with more acuity, the
assessed packages are larger, but GHC will work to
bring them down once they are at home where their
needs can dramatically reduce. With the development
of the Transfer of Care Bureau which triages patients
as they are discharged, most people who need a bed
based service will transfer to one. Community
referrals amount for 40% of the current business, but
GHC are still able to meet the demand for these

23

continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Inherent Risk

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Page 70

SR7.1

Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah

High 20

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

Moderate 10

SR7.2

Ineffective social care practice, management oversight and
review processes resulting in drift and delay for children and
young people in situations of harm.

Spencer, Chris

High 25

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

SR7.4

Failure to close the gaps in educational outcomes for vulnerable
learners and their peers resulting in adverse impacts for children
Spencer, Chris
and families, increased cost/pressures on specialist provision
and damage to reputation.

High 20

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

SR7.5

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to discontinuity in social engagement with children
and families

Spencer, Chris

High 16

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Scott, Sarah

High 20

High 15

High 15

High 15

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

SR7.7

Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity to meet the
needs of children looked after

Spencer, Chris

High 16

High 16

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Safeguarding Adults team continues to screen and
triage all concerns raised with GCC. The Safeguarding
Adults Board is currently undertaking 4 Safeguarding
Adults reviews, to promote further learning across the
multi agency partnership in adult safeguarding
practice. The Board continues to meet quarterly and
all sub groups are meeting regularly via virtual
platforms.
Performance has continued to improve over this
period, particularly response to risk and visiting. The
enduring impact of Covid and fragility of our ICT
systems are having an impact. Repeat activity
continues to be an area of focus
Closing the gaps and reducing the risks is the highest
priority for the Local Authority and for schools.
Provision for the children and young people most at
risk has been supported in a number of ways
including the strategic use of intervention funding in
schools. The Local Authority provides advice and
guidance related to the use of catchup funding; work
alongside other agencies e.g. the Education
Endowment Fund to ensure that best practice is
widely disseminated. Schools causing concern
continue to be closely monitored and supported.
Investment has been made by the Local Authority,
schools and settings in the recovery curriculum and
ensuring that resources are available to support well
being and to address the social, emotional and mental
health needs that have increased as a result of the
Covid19 crisis.
Our workforce profile has improved over this quarter
as we have continued to reduce our agency % and
absorb our ASYE, students and overseas workforce.
Despite Covid our attendance has also remained
strong although a degree of fatigue and weariness is
evident.
We continue to develop Home First with the Lead
Provider GHC in order to maximise home based
packages for all of those who need them. Where we
do not have the capacity within the service then GHC
are working with Winter Alliance of providers who are
providing care hours to bolster the existing service.
With people coming home with more acuity, the
assessed packages are larger, but GHC will work to
bring them down once they are at home where their
needs can dramatically reduce. With the development
of the Transfer of Care Bureau which triages patients
as they are discharged, most people who need a bed
based service will transfer to one. Community
referrals amount for 40% of the current business, but
GHC are still able to meet the demand for these
packages. COVID is affecting the rate of referrals
making them artificially low however, so
commissioners will extend the Winter Alliance scheme
to cover off gaps in provision if demand outstrips
supply. General packages of care are still being
supported by providers. Where there have been
provider issues, commissioners have been able to find
alternative provision.
Trevone House has now come into commission and
we are increasing the % of in house foster care
capacity that has a child in placement. Covid is
continuing to have an adverse impact on the
availability of placement options.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults (New Qtr3 19  20)
Ref.

SR7.8

Risk

Owner

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due
to failure to complete a Deprivation of Liberty assessment within
the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden change in
the law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in March 2014
Scott, Sarah
there is an excessively high demand for best interest

Inherent Risk

High 20

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Moderate 9

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The DoLS service continues to prioritise all applications
in line with ADASS guidance. Two new practitioners
have recently been recruited, which will assist in
addressing the backlog of applications and in

24

availability of placement options.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults (New Qtr3 19  20)
Ref.

SR7.8

Risk

Owner

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Inherent Risk

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due
to failure to complete a Deprivation of Liberty assessment within
the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden change in
the law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in March 2014
Scott, Sarah
there is an excessively high demand for best interest
assessments to be carried out for Deprivation of Liberty (DoLS)
authorisations.

High 20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The DoLS service continues to prioritise all applications
in line with ADASS guidance. Two new practitioners
have recently been recruited, which will assist in
addressing the backlog of applications and in
preparing for the implementation of the Mental
Capacity (Amendment) Act in April 2022.

Moderate 9

Strategic Risk 8: Workforce Planning & Employee Relations
Ref.

SR8.1

Risk

Owner

Difficulties in recruiting and retaining experience workers in hard
to fill roles leading to vacancies and/or high numbers of agency
Quayle,
staff in some areas. This is particularly prevalent for social
Mandy
workers but is also increasingly a factor for other professional
roles.

Inherent Risk

High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Moderate 12

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Moderate 12

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Moderate 12

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 12

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
The programmes to attract new workers to hard to fill
roles have continued throughout the pandemic and
the trends in reducing Children's social worker
vacancies and agency workers continue to be
positive. Apprenticeships and other 'grow our own'
programmes are also starting to show positive results,
however there continues to be challenges in recruiting
experienced workers in areas where there are
national shortages such as social care lawyers and
professionals in highways and infrastructure. The
impact of Covid on the job market has increased
applications for some roles but largely not those which
are highly specialist.

Moderate 12

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats
Ref.

Page 71

SR10.1

Risk

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond to
a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Owner

Bowcock,
Wayne

Inherent Risk

High 20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

High 15

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Moderate 12

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Whilst seasonal inclement weather still poses a risk,
the recent localised flooding was managed within
planning guidelines and the impact was minimised.
Although several properties suffered flooding and
roads closed there was a coordinated response which
supported communities and prioritised and protected
the vulnerable. The response to this has already been
debriefed and reviewed and further changes to the
partnership response protocols updated and
strengthened.
The agreed business continuity management (BCM)
programme which runs through to summer 2022 is
progressing and is on track. Membership of the
corporate BCM Assurance Board (BCMAB) has been
finalised and work to compile accurate management
information (MI) for consideration by BCMAB is near
completion. As it stands, the MI shows that only
approx. 25% of existing business continuity plans are
uptodate, with approx. 6% of all GCC / GFRS
services and functions admitting that they do not
have any form of BCP in place. These figures confirm
the current risk impact assessment.
In line with best practice, robust and accurate
business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted
before BCPs are developed / updated. A new BIA
process has therefore been developed and this has
been successfully trialed with GFRS Logistics &
Resources; a further trial with the GCC Archives
Service is scheduled for January 2021. BIAs will then
be rolled out across GCC / GFRS, using an existing
understanding of priority / criticality to inform which
BIAs need to be addressed first.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Bowcock,
Wayne

High 16

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

As the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will be
updated across the organisation and processes will be
implemented to ensure that plans are rehearsed and
tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a
reduction in risk impact. The planned business
continuity activities may also reduce risk likelihood
over time although it should be noted that CLT has
agreed, per the corporate Business Continuity Policy,
that it is neither feasible nor practicable to entirely
eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption

25

are highly specialist.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats
Ref.

SR10.1

Risk

Owner

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond to
a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Bowcock,
Wayne

Inherent Risk

High 20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

High 15

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Whilst seasonal inclement weather still poses a risk,
the recent localised flooding was managed within
planning guidelines and the impact was minimised.
Although several properties suffered flooding and
roads closed there was a coordinated response which
supported communities and prioritised and protected
the vulnerable. The response to this has already been
debriefed and reviewed and further changes to the
partnership response protocols updated and
strengthened.
The agreed business continuity management (BCM)
programme which runs through to summer 2022 is
progressing and is on track. Membership of the
corporate BCM Assurance Board (BCMAB) has been
finalised and work to compile accurate management
information (MI) for consideration by BCMAB is near
completion. As it stands, the MI shows that only
approx. 25% of existing business continuity plans are
uptodate, with approx. 6% of all GCC / GFRS
services and functions admitting that they do not
have any form of BCP in place. These figures confirm
the current risk impact assessment.

Moderate 12

Page 72

In line with best practice, robust and accurate
business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted
before BCPs are developed / updated. A new BIA
process has therefore been developed and this has
been successfully trialed with GFRS Logistics &
Resources; a further trial with the GCC Archives
Service is scheduled for January 2021. BIAs will then
be rolled out across GCC / GFRS, using an existing
understanding of priority / criticality to inform which
BIAs need to be addressed first.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Bowcock,
Wayne

High 16

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

Moderate 12

As the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will be
updated across the organisation and processes will be
implemented to ensure that plans are rehearsed and
tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a
reduction in risk impact. The planned business
continuity activities may also reduce risk likelihood
over time although it should be noted that CLT has
agreed, per the corporate Business Continuity Policy,
that it is neither feasible nor practicable to entirely
eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption
risks at source (the appropriate response to such risks
being for GCC to plan to react effectively should the
risks be realised  preparing to minimise the impact of
the incident and to promptly recover the affected
activities, i.e. business continuity planning).

Moderate 12

Additionally, a range of work is progressing with the
GCC Strategic Procurement Service to ensure that a
significant BCM risk  arising from a reliance on third
parties, suppliers and delivery partners  is adequately
addressed throughout the procurement lifecycle,
from the beginning of the procurement process (e.g.
defining requirements and drafting tenders), through
supplier selection and the agreement of contracts,
ongoing contract / relationship management activities
and, ultimately, the orderly exit from relationships
with key suppliers.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 20/21)
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
Bowcock,
SR10.6
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability to Wayne
deliver emergency services to the community

Inherent Risk

High 20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Moderate 12

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Workforce planning takes place but the impact of
COVID has delayed recruitment processes for
Firefighters. A comprehensive improvement plan is in
development which will require sufficient core support
and / or GFRS capacity. Effective business planning,
support and access to resources will impact the
direction of travel of this risk.

26

with key suppliers.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 20/21)
Ref.

Risk

Owner

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
Bowcock,
SR10.6
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability to Wayne
deliver emergency services to the community

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Inherent Risk

High 20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Workforce planning takes place but the impact of
COVID has delayed recruitment processes for
Firefighters. A comprehensive improvement plan is in
development which will require sufficient core support
and / or GFRS capacity. Effective business planning,
support and access to resources will impact the
direction of travel of this risk.

Moderate 12

Strategic Risk 11: Information Governance
Ref.

SR11.1

Risk

Owner

Failure to comply with data protection and to protect the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of information.

Ayliffe, Rob

Risk

Owner

Inherent Risk

High 20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Moderate 8

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Moderate 8

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Moderate 12

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
There has been a growing number of cyberattacks
on public sector bodies. While GCC has not been a
victim, it is an area requiring increased vigilance.
Work is underway on a specific Cyber Security risk
register, but progress has been slowed by other
priorities for the ICT team.

Moderate 12

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change (New Qtr 3 19/20)
Ref.

Page 73

SR12.1

Failure to deliver the County Council’s climate change Strategy
impacting on reputational damage.

Chick, Colin

Risk

Owner

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Inherent Risk

High 25

Moderate 10

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Moderate 10

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Emissions for Q2 YTD (reported a quarter in arrears)
show that corporate emissions continue to be way
ahead of the new target of at least 80% carbon
reduction by 2030 (net zero inc offset); 2,126 tCO2e
to date for 2020/21 vs 2,866 tCO2e for the same
period 2019/20. Overall 14% reduction in emissions
vs Q2 YTD 2019/20, including from the impacts of
Covid19 on energy use for buildings, fuel for fleet
(inc pool cars) and staff & member travel claims.
The 50% renewable electricity generation from the
Javelin Park Energy from Waste Facility equivalent to
6,924 tCO2e grid electricity takes the council's
corporate emissions beyond carbon neutral, to being
carbon negative by 4,798 tCO2e.
Delivery of the Glos Climate Change Strategy has
slowed, with work being dialled down during the
pandemic, but progress with development and
delivery of the action plan continues.

Moderate 10

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU
Ref.

Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the
Bowcock,
SR13.1 possible impact on funding and policy change affecting
Wayne
Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in general

Inherent Risk

High 15

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec19

Moderate 10

Residual Risk
Qtr Mar20

Moderate 10

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20

Moderate 10

High 15

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
GCC departmental BCP's have been updated, RWCS
have been assessed and risks agreed by
Gloucestershire LRF. The LRF strategic group has
reviewed membership to ensure full representation.
Strategic coordination group meetings are taking place
to coordinate activity. Current indications are that
there is unlikely to be a local sudden impact and that
adjustments to legislation, policy and practice will
occur at steady pace over a prolonged period of time
enabling a planned approach by the county council.

Moderate 10

Strategic Risk 14: Community Infrastructure Levy
Ref.

Risk

SR14.1 Emergence of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Owner
Chick, Colin

Inherent Risk
High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun20
Moderate 9

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep20
High 16

Residual Risk
Qtr Dec20
High 16

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions
Negotiations continue with the 5 District Councils that
have implemented CIL.

27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21
Purpose of Report: To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital
outturn expenditure for 2020/21.
Officer:

Paul Blacker, Director of Finance (01452) 3258999
Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Revenue Expenditure 2020/21
A. Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 2020/21
1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue
budget of £468.183 million, based on actual expenditure at the end of November
2020 (Period 8) and forecasts in December (Period 9) is a £1.730 million
overspend, all of which relates to non Covid expenditure. This is an improvement
of the position reported to Cabinet on the 16th December, which was £4.461m
overspend. It is anticipated that the additional funding provided by Government
will be sufficient to fully fund Covid expenditure.
2. As in previous months the largest non-COVID budget variance is the £6.636
million forecast overspend in Children and Families – this is an improvement of
£1.033 million in the Directorate non-COVID position since Cabinet on 16th
December. This overspend is partially offset by the £4.641 million underspend in
Technical & Countywide. In order to reduce this overall forecast non-COVID
overspend of £1.730 million further, all service areas are continuing to examine
current spending plans and the Executive Director of Corporate Resources is
continuing to review all opportunities to reduce this overspend including the use
of Earmarked Reserves. Any remaining overspend at the year end will need to
be funded from General Reserves. Currently General Reserves are £18.846
million.
3. The Council’s forecast cost of responding to the Covid-19 pandemic (excluding
expenditure funded from specific grants) is £37.896 million in 2020/21 which is
funded by £33.847 million Covid Emergency Grant and the forecast
reimbursement of £4.049 million of lost Sales, Fees and Charges. A balanced
position is therefore forecast for COVID related activity.
4. In addition to the £37.896 million of COVID funding detailed above, the Council
has also received other ring fenced Covid-19 related grant funding most notably:

1

Page 75

Other ringfenced Covid -19 related grant

Infection Control Grant (includes second trance £6.621 m)
Test & Trace
Covid-19 Bus Service Support Grant

£m

14.373
2.222
0.691

Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and Essential Supplies
H2ST DFE grant

0.558
1.016

DFT Emergency Active Travel Fund (EATF) Tranche 1
Department for Health & Social Care -Contain Outbreak
Management fund
Department for Work & Pensions - Covid Winter Grant
Scheme

0.111

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
(MHCLG)Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) people.
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
(MHCLG) and Home Office
Other ringfenced Covid -19 related grant

5.097
1.508

0.363
0.091
26.029

5. The assumption in this report is that relevant expenditure will be limited to the
value of these ring fenced grants – any underspend will either need to be
returned or carried forward to be spent in accordance with the grant conditions in
future years.
6. In total the Council has currently been allocated £63.925 million of COVID
related grants including an estimated £4.049 million through the reimbursement
of lost sales, fees and charges scheme.
7. In October the Department of Health and Social Care announced new allocations
for local authorities from the existing Containment Outbreak Management Fund
(COMF) to support the new three tier COVID classification rules. On 10th
November the GCC allocation was confirmed as £5.097 million (included in the
table above). In addition to this amount which is include in the table above an
additional allocation of £2 per head of population for those in Tier 2 and £4 per
head for those in Tier 3 was announced on 1st December. The December
allocation was confirmed as £1.456 million for GCC on 4th January 2021. It is
anticipated that additional COMF funding will be available during this financial
year as long as Gloucestershire remains in Tier 2 or above. Funding is
anticipated to remain at £4 per head of population for every 28 days we remain
in tier 3, 4 or national lockdown and the £2 per head for every 28 days in tier 2 –
amounts will be allocated pro-rata if we move tiers mid way through a 28 day
period.
8. An analysis of the current forecast position is provided in the table and narrative
below.
2

Page 76

Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position December Forecasts 2020 (P9)
Variance

Service Area

Revised
2020/21
Budget

£000

Adults

Forecast
Outturn
Position

Forecast
Outturn
Variance

%

£000

£000

%

Covid-19
Forecast

Change in Variance
from that previously
reported (excluding
Covid-19)

Forecast
excluding
Covid-19

£000

£000

£000

163,168

178,968

15,800

9.68%

15,800

0

0

34,659

35,828

1,169

3.37%

1,478

-309

-57

130,191

143,955

13,764

10.57%

7,128

6,636

-1,033

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure

81,243

88,595

7,352

9.05%

7,352

0

0

Community Safety

22,234

22,833

599

2.69%

462

137

5

Corporate Resources

36,652

40,697

4,045

11.04%

4,138

-93

-61

Corporate Resources Recharges

-36,575

-36,575

0

0.00%

0

0

0

Total for Services

431,572

474,301

42,729

9.90%

36,358

6,371

-1,146

36,611

33,508

-3,103

-8.48%

1,538

-4,641

-1,585

468,183

507,809

39,626

8.46%

37,896

1,730

-2,731

37,896

0

-37,896

506,079

507,809

1,730

Prevention & Wellbeing

Children & Families

Page 77

Technical & Countywide

Total
Additional Funding Covid-19 to be
allocated
Revised Total

-37,896
0.37%

3

0

0
1,730

-2,731

Adult Social Care
9. Adult Social Care (ASC) is reporting an underlying overspend of £15.800 million
which includes £15.800 million for estimated COVID-19 costs. Excluding the
COVID-19 costs ASC are reporting a balanced position
10. Adult Social Care reserves currently stand at £6.427 million. The reserves
continue to be held as Vulnerable Adults Reserve at £2.665 million with the
balance specifically set aside for the backdated element of new Ordinary
Residence cases and additional commitments relating to the National Living
Wage and the Care Act.
11. There continues to be a number of significant risks that are ongoing which mainly
relate to COVID-19, S117 backdated payments, responding to winter pressures,
as well as the Adult Single Programme (ASP) with MTFS cost reduction targets
of £4.799 million.
12. The forecast cost of responding to Covid-19 within Adults is currently estimated
at £15.800 million. This is made up of:








£7.855 million of additional support to care providers
£1.862 million of additional demand as a result of Covid-19
£0.849 million additional workforce spend
£1.185 million on PPE
£2.900 million of Adult Single Programme savings at risk
£0.813 million Reduced Client Contributions
£0.336 million miscellaneous spend across a range of budgets

13. Learning Disabilities (LD) External Care is projecting a £2.555 million
underspend. The LD underspend includes one-off funding that is unavailable in
next financial year and an in year overachievement of ASP savings as results of
backdated costs recovered from previous years and the early achievement of
savings scheduled for next financial year.
14. Older People (OP) and Physical Disabilities (PD) is projecting a £4.518 million
overspend. The overspend is split across individual service budgets with OP
showing as £3.419 million and PD £1.099 million. The OP/PD overspend
assumes 100% delivery of 2020/21 ASP cost reduction target. The overspend
mainly relates to the unachieved cost reductions from 2019/20, voids relating to
homes run by a major provider, increased bad debt provision and winter
pressures.
15. The Mental Health position of a £1.680 million overspend as calculated by the
Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST Finance Team, net of unallocated MTFS
growth and savings held by the Lead Commissioner. No actions are built into the
current year forecast to address the underlying overspend although a long term
4

Page 78

plan is being developed by the Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST. The
position has improved by £875k this month due to one off funding being available
to cover the supported accommodation savings and sufficient funding being
available in the s117 Reserve to cover the s117 refunds.
16. Other Services comprise of all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as
a number of specific commissioned contracts. The forecast position for these
services net to a £7.348 million overspend including significant variances:
a. £9.627 million significant overspends: £7.190 million is COVID-19
Provider Relief Support and would be expected to net to nil due to
Government Funding; £1.407 million reablement saving allocation not
yet addressed/confirmed; £733k COVID-19 expenditure mainly
relating to PPE; £298k Thriving Communities additional staff cost
relating to COVID-19.
b. £2.219 million significant underspends: £312k Safeguarding; £1.276
million OP/PD Integrated Social Care Management (ISCM) due
largely to vacancies; and £631k LD Assessment, Support Planning &
Management mainly due to vacancies.
17. Other Services are reported as £636k underspend, to be used to cover
overspends under Market Management
Prevention and Wellbeing
18. Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a number
of smaller budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants. In total
Prevention Services are £1.169 million over-spent but this includes £1.478
million of COVID-19 expenditure.
19. In October the Department of Health and Social Care announced new allocations
for local authorities from the existing Contain Management Outbreak
Management Fund (COMF) to support the new three tier COVID classification
rules. The funding is intended to fund public health activities such as proactive
containment and intervention measures. This grant will be administered by upper
tier Local Authorities in England. On 10th November the GCC allocation was
confirmed as £5.097 million following all areas being classified as very high risk
and from 2 December a further £1.456 million has been confirmed to continue
this support under the revised COVID tier classification covering the period to
29th December. The COMF grant funding can be used to continue the
containment and management of the outbreak into 2021/22 and part of the grant
will be used for this purpose. The Council has also received a grant for £2.222
million to support Test and Trace activities and plans are being put in place in
place to deliver on this requirement.
5

Page 79

20. The underlying non-COVID-19 position for Prevention and Well Being is a £764k
under-spend. Public Health services are funded by a ring-fenced grant, which if
unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific reserve. The Public Health
position, excluding COVID-19 expenditure, is forecast to be £455k under-spent
and this will be transferred to the PH reserve at year end. Therefore the forecast
non-COVID-19 underspend net of the transfer to the PH Reserve is £309k.
21. COVID-19 expenditure of £1.478 million covers three key areas, shelter for the
homeless, additional commissioned mental health services and mortuary
planning costs.
22. The in-year forecast for Public Health is an under-spend of £455k due to lower
commitments for health checks and sexual health testing as fewer people are
accessing the service but this is offset by the additional costs of Agenda for
Change pay uplifts on contracts with NHS staff. Following further information
from providers the Agenda for Change estimated cost pressure has increased to
£580k but is offset by other under-spends in year.
Children & Families
23. The current forecast for the year end revenue position as at December 2020 for
non-DSG funded services is an over-spend of £13.764 million (10.57% of
budget). Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact
of COVID-19 on budgets which totals £7.128 million giving an underlying overspend of £6.636 million, which includes a contingency of £1.776 million for new
external placements. Since the last reported forecast in October the underlying
position has reduced by £1.033 million due to an additional grant of £300k for
home to school transport COVID costs, a review of existing transport routes and
a reduction in the over-spend on social care staffing costs due to the new cohort
of newly qualified staff starting. Significant over-spends still include external
placements and home to school transport, both of which were identified as
ongoing pressures at the end of 2019/20
24. Additional forecast expenditure for the impact of COVID-19 covers five key areas
which are external placement costs, home to school transport, transitions for
care leavers, staffing and support to vulnerable pupils once schools
recommence. In some areas it is difficult to identify what costs are related to the
impact of COVID-19 so a further £2 million is being used to offset forecast costs
since there is likely to be a significant impact on social care and education
services when lockdown measures are eased. A specific grant of £558k is being
used to fund essential food and services for children and families and a further
winter grant of £1.508 million will continue this provision to the end of the
financial year.
25. Activity levels within social care continue to cause significant budgetary
pressures on children’s services and in particular against the external placement
6

Page 80

and safeguarding staff budgets resulting in the over-spend. At the end of
November 2020 children in care numbers were 789 compared to 722 at the end
of April 2019.
26. The current forecast over-spend against the external placement budget is £9.3
million (34.9% above budget). This includes a contingency of £1.776 million for
new cases in-year to allow for additional placements to replace existing care
commitments or for higher number of placements due to increased activity; the
forecast also includes £4.186 million for the current and future impact of COVID19 on placement numbers. The current forecast average unit cost of a placement
is £106,500 per annum, (residential/supported living average unit cost of
£172,700). There are currently 377 external placements, of which 100 are
residential and 81 supported living placements.
27. The impact of COVID-19 on services is still uncertain therefore the forecast is
based on a lot of assumptions in terms of growth in activity, delays in transitions,
capacity in the fostering market both in-house and external and the impact of
opening of Trevone House providing additional capacity for young people.
Assumptions will be reviewed on a monthly basis and adjusted accordingly.
Improving social care practice to divert children from care at an earlier point and
achieve permanence at the earliest opportunity will reduce numbers of children
in care costs in the longer term.
28. Against safeguarding staffing budgets there is a forecast over-spend of £1.211
million (6.2% above budget) which includes £400k as a contingency for
additional staffing capacity to respond to any spike in activity from September
onwards. Improved processes for recruitment, more effective advertising and the
support and training provided by the social work academy is improving the
stability of the workforce. Turnover of staff has been between 13.2% and 15%
over the last six months and at the end of November there were 91 agency
workers in post, a significant reduction from over 180 two years ago. As the
newly qualified staff that have been appointed over the last year gain experience,
the number of agency staff is expected to reduce.
29. In addition to this, Young People’s Support is forecasting a £536k over-spend
due to the additional cost of agency staff covering vacancies which will reduce as
permanent staff are appointed. £392k relates to COVID-19 expenditure.
30. Home to school transport is reporting an over-spend of £1.775 million (which
includes a £1.34 million contingency for the impact on service provision of
COVID-19 from September onwards which has been offset be a specific grant of
£1.015 million. The underlying cost pressure is due to the rise in demand and
cost of SEN provision, the number of solo journeys required and the increased
cost of procuring new routes. An action plan is in place to address a range of
issues and reduce costs wherever possible.
7

Page 81

31. Other over-spends include the cost of additional management capacity to
continue with the safeguarding improvement journey through the COVID-19
period resulting in an over-spend of £701k across social care and commissioning
and a £500k contingency to support vulnerable pupils as they return to school in
the Autumn. Also there is an over-spend of £207k against special guardianships
due to a higher than expected number of orders and a £312k impact from loss of
income across Children’s services due to COVID-19.
32. To offset these cost pressures £1.52 million of funding from the MTFS has been
used to offset the over-spend in year.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position
33. Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent
by £14.415 million in 2020/21, which includes the deficit carry forward of £8.442
million and the deficit budget which was set for High Needs of £5.449 million.
The deficit budget results from setting realistic budgets within high needs
services considering growth trends and existing activity demands on special
school and independent provision and top up budgets.
34. In-year there is significant demand for special school provision and with special
school places at capacity a £750k pressure has been reported against
independent special schools budget. The Early Years block is currently forecast
to under-spend by £300k against the budget for free entitlement for nursery
places for three and four year olds.
35. The budget pressures that Gloucestershire is facing reflect the national picture
with significant deficits in DSG high needs being held in many Local Authorities.
The implementation of the High Needs Strategy will be essential to ensure the
budget is balanced in future years and a spending review of services is in
progress with a financial recovery plan being reviewed and developed alongside
this review.
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
36. Economy, Environment and Infrastructure are currently forecasting a overspend
position of £7.352 million (9.00% of the budget). This is all down to the impact of
Covid-19 related costs or loss of income as set out in the paragraph below.

8

Page 82

37. Loss of income is forecasted to be £5.636 million which is split between £1.222
million from Registrations and Libraries, £3.056 million from parking related
income, £1.074 million from sale of electricity and £284k from other income.
38. Covid 19 costs are forecasted to be £1.339 million which is made up from £334k
recycling credit payments, £125k for additional bulking and haulage of kerbside
collections, £160k for PPE costs, £217k for the provision of extra vehicles, £52k
for Traffic control at HRC’s, £181k for Library kiosks and digital stock and £270k
for other.
39. Unachievable savings caused by Covid-19 is forecasted to be £0.377m, these are
expected to be delivered in 2021/22.
Community Safety Directorate
40. The Community Safety Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £599k (2.69%
of budget) including estimated costs attributed to COVID 19 of £462k. Excluding
Covid-19 costs, the forecast outturn indicates an overspend of £137k.
41. The Fire and Rescue Service is forecasting an overspend of £570k. Covid-19
costs total £542k but this has been off-set by a Fire Covid-19 contingency fund
allocation of £92k reducing the cost to £450k, giving an underlying overspend of
£120k. There a number of small variations across the budgets contributing to the
overspend which the Service will endeavour to contain within this current
forecast.
42. The Coroner’s Service, Trading Standards Service and the Civil Protection Team
are either on budget or are forecasting only minor variances.

Corporate Resources
43. Corporate Resources are forecasting an overspend of £4.045 million (11.04% of
the budget). Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the
impact of COVID-19 on budgets which totals £4.138 million giving an underlying
underspend of £93K. (0.25% of the budget.)
44. The forecast expenditure of £4.138 million for the impact of Covid-19 incudes
£2.421 million of estimated costs associated with a second wave, £270k for ICT,
£373k in the Asset Management & Property Services budgets and £954k against
the Legal services budget due to additional children’s cases.

9

Page 83

Technical and Countywide
45. The forecast outturn position for Technical and Countywide budgets is a £3.103
million underspend (8.47% of budget). The main areas of variance are
highlighted in the paragraphs below.
46. Positive interest rate credits on cash balances totalling £1.275 million, reflecting
better diversification of investments and longer term deposits. This is lower than
previous years as a result of lower interest rates introduced to mitigate the
economic impact of COVID -19 – this impact is estimated to be £1.5 million.
47. The 2020/21 budget includes an MtC savings contingency; this was approved by
Council to reflect the high risk nature of some of the savings programmes in
demand led areas in 2020/21. £1.389 million is being used to support the overall
budget position for 2020/21.
48. An underspend of £342k within the Capital Financing Budget is now forecast
following reductions in projected MRP payments due to slippage on approved
capital schemes.

B. Capital Expenditure
Current Spend 2020/21
49. The capital budget for 2020/21 is £123.463 million. Actual spend against the capital
programme as at the end of November 2020 (period 8) is £54.994 million.
Budget and Forecast Outturn Position 2020/21
50. The forecast outturn position for 2020/21 is £123.280 million, against the budget of
£123.463 million, giving forecast in-year slippage of £183k.
51. Details of the budgets and forecast year end position, and any significant variances,
are provided in the table below and the narrative that follows.

10

Page 84

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2020/21
Reprofiled
Budget
2020/21

Current
Year
Spend
2020/21

£000

£000

% Current
Year
Spend
against
Reprofiled
Budget
%

Service Area
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale
Adults

0

0

9,758

-309

21,232
450

Forecast
Outturn
2020/21

Forecast
Year-end
Variance

£000

£000
0

0

-3

10,108

350

9,137

43

21,638

406

439

98

512

62

68,403

35,730

52

68,313

-90

Children's Services
Schools
Non-Schools
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Highways
Strategic Infrastructure

2,881

47

2

2,816

-65

Waste Disposal

580

40

7

166

-414

Libraries

407

213

52

407

0

1,426

842

59

1,472

46

39

0

0

39

0

12,306

5,873

48

11,858

-448

4,247

2,586

61

4,247

0

855

0

0

855

0

51

15

30

21

-30

828

381

46

828

0

123,463

54,994

45

123,280

-183

Community Safety
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service
Trading Standards
Corporate Services
AMPS
ICT projects
Business Service Centre
Archives & Information Management
Customer
Total

Adults
52. The Adults Capital Programme is forecasting an in-year overspend of £350k against
the current budget. This is due to an earlier opportunity to purchase a property for
Supported Living Accommodation in Fairford, originally anticipated in 2021/22. This has
no effect on the total cost of the project.
Schools
53. The Schools Capital Programme is forecasting an in-year overspend of £406k against
the current budget. This is due to faster than anticipated progress on the Winchcombe
School expansion project. This has no effect on the total cost of the project.
Waste
54. The Waste Capital Programme is forecasting in-year slippage of £414k against the
current budget. This relates to the works at both the Wingmoor and Fosse Cross sites
which have slipped due to delays with planning applications.

11

Page 85

Corporate Resources
55. The Asset Management & Property Services (AMPS) Capital Programme is
forecasting in-year slippage of £448k:
 £200k due to delays in Coroners Court Refrigeration Replacement (as
reported in previous month) due to COVID-19
 £150k due to delays in County Offices Cheltenham Refurbishment &
Reconfiguration due to COVID-19
 £52k due to delays in Community Asset Transfers due to COVID-19
 £46k due to delays in St. Georges Road car park due to COVID-19
Other Services Capital Programmes
All other services are forecast to spend within £250k of the current budgets.

Changes to the Capital Programme in 2020/21 and future years
Adults
56. The Council has received an additional £812k Disabled Facilities Grant allocation
from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government for 2020/21. It
is proposed that this additional grant is added to the existing Disabled Facilities
Grant capital budget.
Highways
57. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £2.274 million in the Highways
capital programme budget as summarised below:
 £692k Department of Transport Active Travel Fund (tranche 2) grant
towards the B4063 Gloucester to Cheltenham Cycle Route scheme.
 £173k from Highways revenue towards the B4063 Gloucester to
Cheltenham Cycle Route scheme, this being the revenue element of the
DfT Active Travel Fund (tranche 2) grant
 £1.165 million Highways England grant towards the B4063 Gloucester to
Cheltenham Cycle Route scheme
 £219k from Highways Locals fund to support a number of Structural
Maintenance schemes.
 £25k Developer contribution towards a Moreton-in-Marsh footway scheme
Overall
58. As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by
£3.086 million.

12

Page 86

Agenda Item 8
Corporate Performance Report
Quarter 3 2020/21
Corporate Resources
Percentage of Corporate Performance Indicators On/Ahead, Within Tolerance or
Behind Target
60.0%

Q3 2020/21

54.5%

Q2 2020/21

20.0%

10.0%

45.5%
70.0%

50.0%
20.0%

On or Ahead of Target

36.4%

9.1%

10.0%

Q3 2019/20
0.0%

9.1%

45.5%

Q1 2020/21
Q4 2019/20

40.0%

30.0%

10.0%
40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

40.0%
70.0%

Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Behind Target)

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

≥ 5% Behind Target

Overall Performance
In Quarter 3, 60.0% (6) of Corporate Performance Indicators for Corporate Resources were on or
ahead of target. Employee Engagement Figures have been delayed due to Covid-19.
There are 8 Strategic Risks for Corporate Resources, 3 of these are rated as High and relate to
ICT and future funding for the Council.
A number of areas within the service continue to report amber/red performance, risk or progress
against service plan objectives due to the impact of COVID i.e. access and limitations to delivery,
demand/capacity or financial pressures, backlog or slippage, issues with partner/provider
capacity/delivery.
1. Human Resources: Increases in sickness are expected, in-line with seasonal trends, but
days lost due to sickness remain notably lower than past performance (1.58 days per FTE)
and is better than target (1.8). Sickness related to COVID is increasing affecting just under 1%
of the workforce. Over a 12-month period, performance continues to be better than the
national average (6.25 compared with 8.8 days lost per FtE).
2. Workforce stability is good, with turnover remaining at 9.3% and below the national average
(13.4%). However, Children’s Services saw an increase in the turnover of social workers from
11.2% to 15.1% (Note that this does not include turnover of agency staff). Turnover of adult
social workers decreased this quarter and is at the lowest level recorded (10.1%).
3. While efforts within directorates have been made, the completion of annual PDRs remains low
(26.3%), resulting in poor sight of performance levels and continues to raise questions about
levels of support and clear direction being provided for staff by managers.
4. ICT: There were three Priority 1 incidents in Quarter 3 (Note: this is an organisation-wide
issue, an issue causing an outage or one preventing a large volume of GCC staff from
working). This is the same as the past two quarters and remains the lowest level of incidents
for two years; performance is meeting target. There was also 1 ICT security breach in Quarter
3 which is worse than target.
Risks relating to ensuring that ICT is fit for purpose and being subject to a Cyber Attack both
remain high; extensive work to mitigate these risks is ongoing.

Page 87

5. AMPS: Income derived from Capital Receipts is below target (£1.69m against a target of
£5m). The Disposals Programme and Capital Receipts have been delayed due to Covid-19
with some receipts now expected following the start of the new financial year.
6. Strategic Finance: The level of Uncommitted General Reserves remains unchanged from the
previous two quarters.
7. Financial pressures relating to COVID and funding levels for Local Authorities remained
Moderate this quarter following the announcement of additional COVID related funding from
central government.
Considerable uncertainty remains around funding levels in 2022/23 and 2023/24. It is
anticipated that there will be a Comprehensive Spending Review in autumn 2021 where
further clarity will be given regarding medium term funding levels.
8. SHE: 1 RIDDOR incident within the Children’s Directorate relating to slips and trips was
reported in Quarter 3; performance was better than target.
9. Governance: Two ‘upheld’ decisions were received from the Local Government and Social
Care Ombudsman this quarter; this is on target. Cases related to Adult Social Care and
Parking. In both cases, policy or processes were updated in remedy. The dissemination and
speed of communication with claimants is a reoccurring theme of complaints.
10. Information Management: Increasing demand pressures are impacting capacity to respond
and response timeliness placing our ability to meet our statutory duties at risk. While the
proportion of official requests for information released within a legal time period increased for
the second month, from 66% in Quarter 1 to 73% in Quarter 3; performance remains below
target for the fifth quarter.
11. Legal: Resource and capacity issues continue to place pressure on Legal Services and
impact performance and risk levels. There are a high proportion of vacant lawyer posts within
the service (30%). The Grow our Own programme is progressing to mitigate the issues of
appointing experienced lawyers, with five internal candidates appointed and due to start in
mid-January.
The hours worked for Children’s are significantly over hours budgeted (142%). There is also a
backlog of Children’s court cases where hearings need to be held in-person, resulting in
delays in securing legal outcomes which reduce risk and support permanence for children. 33
cases have been out-sourced to Warwickshire County Council to support the alleviation of the
backlog.

Page 88

Agenda Annex
Scrutiny and working group update
March 2021
1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny
Committee




2

9 March 2021

Public Health Report
Adult Social Care Report
Chief Fire Officer Report
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee



3

Community Phlebotomy Services
Covid-19 Temporary Service Changes

2 March 2021

Children and Families Scrutiny Committee
 Accelerated Improvement Plan Update
 DfE Gloucestershire Highlight Report
 Sufficiency Strategy
 Quality Assurance Framework Progress update

4

4 March 2021

Environment Scrutiny Committee




5

December 2020 flooding: Gloucestershire Lead Local
Authority summary report
Rail developments
Restoring our rivers

3 March 2021

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee




19 March 2021

Risk Management
Strategic Performance and Finance
Scrutiny Review next steps

1

Page 89

6

Economic Growth Joint Scrutiny




7

Update on Skills agenda
Review of Growth Hub service

10 March 2021

Police and Crime Panel



8

Revised Operating Model Update
Policing Post Lockdown

23 March 2021

Working groups



Member Development – ongoing meetings being held

2

Page 90

